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NOTICE OF MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the Annual General Meeting of the Members of Unilever Ghana
PLC will be held VIRTUALLY and streamed live on http://ulghagm.com from Unilever Ghana
PLC, No. Ind/A/3A-4, Heavy Industrial Area, Tema on Thursday, May 26 2022 at 10:00am for
the following purposes:

AGENDA

1. To receive the Report of the Directors, the financial position as at 31st December, 2021
together with the Accounts for the year ended on that date and the Report of the
Auditors thereon.

2. To re-elect the following Directors:
a. Mrs Angela Peasah
b. Mr Priyadharshana Ekanayake
C. Mr Philip Sowah

3. To approve Directors’ fees

4. To authorize the Directors to fix the remuneration of the Auditors

Dated this 11 day of March 2022.

By Order of the Board

Ama A. Agyemang (Mrs)
Secretary


http://ulghagm.com/

Notes

. Attendance and participation at the Annual General Meeting will be by online

participation only in view of the Covid-19 pandemic.

. A Member of the Company entitled to attend and vote may appoint a proxy to attend

and vote instead of him.

A proxy need not be a Member. The Proxy form can be downloaded from
https://www.ulghagm.com and if it is to be valid for the purposes of the meeting, it
must be completed and sent via email to registrar.services@myumbbank.com or
deposited at the Registered Office of the Registrars of the Company, Universal
Merchant Bank Limited, not less than 48 hours before the meeting.

The appointment of a proxy will not prevent a member from attending and voting at the
Meeting via online participation. Where a member attends the Meeting by online
participation, the proxy appointment shall be deemed revoked.

Following the resolution passed at the last held Annual General Meeting, the electronic
version of the Annual Report and Financial Statements shall be posted on the Business’
website as follows https://www.ulghagm.com and Unilever Ghana PLC | Investor
Relations | Unilever East & West Africa (unilever-ewa.com) and same forwarded to the
e-mail addresses of shareholders before the Annual General Meeting

Accessing and Voting at the Virtual AGM

A unique token number will be sent to shareholders by email and/or SMS from May
6,2022 to give them access to the Meeting. Shareholders who do not receive this token
should contact Universal Merchant Bank Ghana Limited via
registrar.services@myumbbank.com or call 030 7011722 anytime from May 6, 2022
but before the date of the meeting to be sent the unique token.

To gain access to the meeting, shareholders must visit https://www.ulghagm.com and
input their unique token number on Thursday May 26, 2022. Access to the meeting will
start from 9am. For shareholders who do not submit proxy forms to the Registrars prior
to the meeting, they may vote electronically during the meeting using their unique token
number.

Further assistance on accessing the meeting and voting electronically can be found on
https://www.ulghagm.com

For further information please contact
Universal Merchant Bank Limited

44 Kwame Nkrumah Avenue, Okaishie, Accra
P. O. Box 401, Accra.

Tel: 030 7011722


https://www.ulghagm.com/
mailto:registrar.services@myumbbank.com
https://www.ulghagm.com/
mailto:registrar.services@myumbbank.com
https://www.ulghagm.com/
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UNILEVER GHANA PLC

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

(All amount is expressed in thousands of Ghana Cedi)

02t
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
TO THE MEMBERS OF
UNILEVER (HANA PLC

Report of The Directors

The Direetors present thetr repont and the conselidated and separaie (nanciul statements of the Group and
Company for the vear ended 31 December 2025,

Directors’ Responsibility Siatement

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of consolidated and separate Mnancial statements that pive a
wic and fair view of Unilever Ghana PLE, comprising the statements of finuncial position at 31 December
2021, and the statements of comprehenstve income, changes in equity and cash flows for the year then ended.
and the notes 1o the financial statements which include & summary of significant accoumting policies and other
cxplanatory notes, i1 accordance with lnternational Financial Reporting Standards and in the snanner requined
by the Companies Act, 2019 (Act 992). In addition, the Dircelors are respansible for the preparation of the
report of the Directors.

The Directors are also responsible for such internal control as the Directors defermine is necessary to enabie
the proparation of financial statements that are frec froin material misstaiement, whether due to fraud or crror,
and for maintaining adequate accounting revords and an effective system of risk management.

The Auditor is responsible for reporting on whether the consolidated and separate financial statements ove A
true and fair view in accordance with the applicable tinancial reporting framewark.

fioing Concern Consideration and State of Affairs

The Growg's current labilines exceeded s cureent assets by GH¢L23 miliion (M020: GHg 133 milliont, In
addition, the Groap had negative net cash and cash cquivalents of GHE?6 million. A substantial part of the
Compuny’s current liabilitics is due to its reiated parties. Unilever PLC, the ultimate parent company of
Unilever Ghana PLC on behall of itsctf, Unilever Overseas Holdings Limited wned UAC International Limited
have conlirmed in a letter 1o the Company that they will tot demund repayment of amounis due to them far one
vear from the date of signing the financial stateiments for the year ended 31 December 2021,

The Giroup has prepared a forecast tor dhe next twelve {12} months which shows the Group will have safficicnt
operating cashflows to finance fture operations and return to profitability in the very near futuse,

The Group alse has overdratt arrangements which have not been fully utilised with some of its bankers to
support 15 operational activitics.

Bascd on above information, the Direclors expect the (roup to continue as 4 going concern i the foreseeable
flture,

Accordingly, the financial statements have been prepared on the basis ol the accounting policies applicable to
thal of a going congern This basis aseomes shar cash Nows ariging from the normal course of business will be
avarlable to finanee futre aperations of the Granp and the realisation of assets and e scttlement of labitities
wonid oceur in the normal conrse of business.

Mature of Busimess/Principal Activities

‘The Group is registercd 0 carty on the business of manufacturing and marketing of fast-moving consumer
goods primanily i home care, personal care and foods categories. During the vear, the Tea Business was
dizsposed ofl to Unilever Tea Distribution Ghama Limited,



REPFORT OF THE DIRECTORS
TO THE MEMBERS OF
UNILEVER GHANA PLC (CONT?IY)
Separation of the Tea Business
On 23 Tuly 2020, following the compietion of a strategic review, Unilever PLC (“Unilever” and together with
its grolp companies, the “Unilever Group™ announced its inlention to separate the Unilever Gronp’s global tea
business {the “Tca Business™) (the “Separation™).
On 1 October 2021, with the appraval of the Shureholders of Unilever Ghana PLC, the separation of the Tea
Business was completed and control passed W the acquirer, Unilever T'ea Distribution Ghana Limited. Detaiis
of the separation can be found in Note 12
Objective of the Grouwp
The objcetive of the Group is to make sustainahle living cormnonplace through ifs brands.

Haolding Company

The Group is 74.5% owned by Unilever Overseas Holding Limited and UAC Inlcrnational Limited theaugh a
cormmon control of its ultimate parent Unilever Plo, a Company incorporated in the United Kingdom.

Subsidiarics of the Group

Tae Company currently has divect interest in below darmant entities a5 at 31 December 2021:

Company Name Country of incorporation Natlure of Business

Unitad Africa Trust Limited Cihana Investment Managament
Swanzy Real Eslule Cihana Keal Fstate Development
LVliilever Chana [nvestmend Limited (ihana Halding Company

Miller Swanzy ((Ghana) Limied Chana Manufacturing, importing &

exparting good, wares &
merchandise of all kinds
Assoriates
The Group does not have direct or indirect equity share in any associates at 31 December 2021 12620: Nil).
Five-Year Financial Highlights
Detaits of the five-year financial highlights is shown [n the appendix.

Financial Statements f Business Review

The stare of affairs of the Group and Company are as follows:

From continning and discontinued operatinns Group Caompany
2021 2020 2021 0
GHg™0mn Giig'nol  GHe'000  GHg'000
Profit{loss) before tax 401 (27.360) M (37,559
Profiti{loss) for the year 350 (30,2400 196 (50,389}
Total assets 352,51 337516 380577 335,721
Total Liabilitics 345767 267 345407 300,922
Total equity 36,774 16,249 35170 34,799

The Directors o not recommend the payment of dividend for the 2021 financial year, (2020: N1l



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
T THE MEMBERS OF
UNILEVER GHANA PLC (CONT'DY)

Particulars of Entities in the Intercst Register During the Financiul Year

Mo Ditcetor had any interest in contracts and proposed cottracts with the Group and Company duri ng the year
under review, henee there were no entries recorded in the Interests Register as reduired by seclions
94063, 14501 )a) and 190 of the Cowmpunies Act 2019, (Act $93),

Related Fartly Transactions

Information regarding Directors interests in ordinary sharcs of the Group and Company amd remuneration are
thselosed in Note 360 to the financial statements. No Director has auy other interest in any shares or loan stock
ol the Company. Related party transactions and balances are alse disclosed in Note 28 1o ihe tinancial
slatements,

Corporate Soeial Responsibility and Code of Ethics
Uinilever G hana Foundation

At the 2019 Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Unilever Ghana Foundation held on the 2151 of July, 2021,
the Bosrd of Trustees of Unilever Ghana Foundation, acting in concerl with the 1lonor {Unilever Ghama PLO),
nassed a resalution (o liguidate the Foundation. The TFoundation had managed 1o complets the following
actvities and projects it had previously commitizd to, paving way tor its suceessiul elosure:

- The rehabilitation of 20 out of the 26 hyglene stations 1 had buill over a five-year period [2013-2018)
- Nevelopment of a docwmentary covering the 20 year existence of the Foordation and its ackievemerls
- Development of a docwnentary on the women empowerment project (Shetkti, now Songgaay which it
sponsored in 2018

- Auditing of the Foundation's finances Lo pave way for the holding ot ite 2020 AGM

A closure ceremony has since been held in honour of the members of the Board of Trustees and St
Admivistralors of the Foundation tar their dedicalion and commitment to the cause of the Foundation over its
20 vears of existence.

Tackling The Plastic Waste Menace Through ihe Forging of Collaborations and Partnerships

As part of its sustainability commmitment undsr the ‘“New Compass® {Unilevers sustainabiiity blueprint), work
to reduce the use of virgin plastics, encourage recyeiing, and the collection and processing of more plastic than
we sell, among others, has been priotilized. In collaboration with The Ghana Reeveling Initiative by Private
trterpnises (GRIPE) and the Coastal Conservancy Organization (CC0D), Unilever Ghana organized a plastic
waste collection drive (dubbed a ‘Plastic Free Decenber”) at the beachfront of the Regional Maritime University
in Tema. Personnel, drawn from GRIPE, the CCO. and Unilever Ghana PLC, Joined hands to cobledt plastic
waste which had been depogited at the beach, largely emanating from the inflows of a local sirean thal enipties
its content into the sei.

GRIPE also organized a Plastic Recovery Project in three Senior Higt Scliools in Accra, The sehoods i obved
are the Achimota, Legon Presee, and Acers Girly” Sznior High Schoeis. Additenally, GRIPE contineed 1o wark
oni the Fxtended Producer Respansibility (L:iPR} sutieme in partaership with the Environment Minisiry and GIZ
Ghana. This scheme is designed to increase awareness among stakeholders who use plastic in the production
of their products, about the need to take on more responsibility for its disposal, well afier 1 has lef the hands
af the consumer.
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Omualification
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George Dwusu-Ansah o Bachelor of Science in Computer o
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Marketing
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{UK}
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Limited - Director
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
TO THE MEMBERS OF
UNILEVER GHANA PLC (CONTD)

Role of the Board

The Directors are responsible for the long-term suceess of the Group and Company, lo determine the strategic
direction of the Group and Company and review operating, financial and risk performance. There is a formal
schedule of natters reserved for the Board of Directors, including approval of the Company’s annual husiness
plan, the Company s strategy, acquisitions, disposals and capital expenditure projects above certain thresholds,
all guarantees, treasury policies, the Hinancial statements, the Group's dividend policy, transactions invelving
the issue or purchase of company shares, horrowing powers, uppointments to the Board, akterations to the
memorandum and articles of association, legal actions brought by or against the Group and Company, and the
scope ol delegations to Board corumitiees, subsidiary boards and the management committee. Respornsibilily
for the development of policy and stralegy and operational management is delogated to the executive Directors
and a management comumillee, which as at the date of this report ingludes the Executive Diractors and {5} semor
managers who constitute the Leadership Team.

Internal Conirol Systems

[he Directors have overall responsibility for the Company’s intermal control systens and annually review (heir
effectiveness, including a review of financtal, operational, compliance and risk management cantrols. The
implementation and maintenance of the risk management and internal control systems arc the responsibility of
the exceutive Directors and other senior management. The sysiems are designed to managp rather than eliminate
the risk of [ailure (o achieve business objectives and 1o provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against
material misstatement or {oss. The Directors have reviewed the cilzctiveness of the internal control systems,
including controls reluted to linanciai, operalional and reputitional risks idemified by Group and the Company
at the reporling date and no significa:t failings or weaknesses were idenafied during this revigw,

Directors’ Perlormunce Evaloation

Every year the pertormance und eilectiveness of the Roard of Dircotors (*he Board™), it commitees and
individual Directors 15 evaluated. The evaluation is conducted by the completion of detailed and comprehensive
wrillen survey questionnaires via Survey Monkey & Microsoft Forms, The tesull of the evaluation is shared
with all mermbers of the Board, Owerall, it was noted that the Board of Directors and its commitices were
operating in an effeclive manner and performing satisfactarity, with no major issues idenrificd,

Professional Development and Training

On appointment to the Board, Directors are provided with a full, formal and tailored programme of induction,
10 lamiliarise them with the Group’s business, the risks and strategic challenges the Group faces, and the
economic, competitive, legal and regulatory environment in which the Group operates. A programme of
stratezic and other reviews, together with the other training provided during the year, ensures that Dircetors
continually update their skills, their knowledge and familiarity with the Group's businesses and their awaceness
of sector, risk, reguladory, legal, financial snd other developments w enable them to fulfil effectively their role
1 ihe Board and commitees of the Roard.
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REFORT OF THE DIRECTORS
TO THE MEMEERS OF
UNILEVER GHANA PLC {CONT'I}}

Conflicts of Interest

The Group has established appropriate contlicts authorisalion procedures; whereby actual or potemtial conflicts
are regulatly reviewed, and authorisations sought as appropriate if any. This has been achieved by maintaining
4 cunflict-of-Interest Repister for recording disclosure of interests made by directors. During the year, no such
conflicts arose, and ne such authorisations were sought,

Eoard Balance and Independence

The composition of the Board of Direclors and its Committees is regutarly reviewed to ensure that there is a
halance and mix of skills, independence, knowledge and experience is maintained. The Board considers that
the Chairman (s indvpendenl en appointment and all non-Gxecutive Directors are independent as it pertains lo
the munagement of the Company. The continuir.g independence and objective judgement of the nun-Executive
Directors have been confirmed by the Board of Divectors,

Auditor

The Audit Comuiittee has respousibility delegated from the Board of Direcrors for making recommendations
on the appoittment, reappointment, removal, and remuneration of the external auditor. Deloitte & Touche were
appainted as avditors in 2021 following the exit of KPMG.

Audit Fees

The audit fee for the year is GH¢ 427,062 {2020: GHg516.000),

Approval of The Report of The Directors

The report of the Direciors of Urmilaver {Ghana PLC was approved by the Board ot Threctors on April Jd 2022
and signed on their behalf by

g&,ua,f.gi L‘rfni .. (%AEEJ\/

Edward Etfah (Chairman) Grorge Owust — Ansah (Managing Director)
Date . 1 -L'/"c':J iL"J/I':'?l_}'* halcﬂ_l { ﬂ l‘t_ J'} 1@ lﬂ"
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Repori on the Andit of the Financial Statemonts

Opinion

We have audited the consclidated and sepacate linancial stalemens of Unilever Ghapa PLC and its subsidiaries
{the Group and Company), set oul oo pages 17 1o 75, wlich comprese the conselidated and separare stateiments
of financial position as af 3| December 2021, the consolidated statements of profit or loss and other
cornprehensive income, sensulidated staternents of changes in equity and censolidated statements ol cash How
for the year then endad, and the notes to the consolidaled hnancial stalemenls, including 2 swnmery of
significant accounting policies and ofher explanatory disclosures |

In our opinion, the consolidaled and separate Gnancial statements give o lruc and fair view of the iinancial
pesition of Unikever Ghana PLC as al 31 December 2071, and its consolidated and separate financial
performance and consolidated and separale cash Dows for the year then ended in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standerds and the regquirernents of the Companies Act, 200 % {Act D923,

Basis for Opinian

We conducied our audit in accordance with Intzrationa! Standards on Auditing (15As). Our responsibilities
under thass standzrds ere further described in the Auditors” Respansibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements seefion of our rennrt. We are independent of the Group and Company in aceardance with the
requireinents of the International Ethics Standards Unard for Accountants’ (TESBA) Intemational Code of
Eihivcs [or Professional Accountents (includimg Tnternations! Independence Standards’} { | ESBA code) and other
mdependence requircrneats applicable to performing avdits of financial siatements in Ghana, We have fulfilked
our other ethical responsibi.ities in accordance with the IESBA Code and otber ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of financial statements in Ghana.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obrained is sufficient and appropnate to provide a basis for our
Opition.

Material Uncertainty Related ta Going Concern

We draw attention to Mote 38 in the financial statements, which indicales that as at 31 Desember 2021, the
Group’s current liabilities exceaded its current asscts by GIHg 125 million. In addition, the Ciroup had negative
ret cash and cash equivalents of GHE 26 millton. These events or conditions, aloug with other matlers as sel
forth inn tote 38, indicate that a material uncertainty exists thal may cast a significant doubt on the Group's
abilily to continue 4$ a going concern. Our opinion is not modified in respeact of this matter,

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in aur audit
ol the conselidated and sepacate financial statcments of the currant pericd. These matters were addressed inthe
contest af our audil of the conselidated and separzte financial statements as & whote, and in forming our apinion
thereomn, and we de oot provide a separate opimen oa these matters, We have determined thal there are no key
andit matters 1o communicate i our repurl with regard 1o the audit of the separale Nnaneial statemenss of the
Company for Lhe current period.

IMPACT THAT
MATTERS /%
” ) i y

" .
e

MAKING AN )

F‘a.rtngrs. and Chartered Accountants: D Owusu = G Ankormah « CForson s A Biney - 5 Boye-Doku « F Bartey = K Situ + ¥ Lartey
Associate of Deloitte Africa, a Member of Dolaitte Tourhe Takmatsy Limited
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Shareholders of Tnilever Chana PLC

Key Awlit Matter

Nale ol Tea Business

| As disclosed in Note [2. the Group disposed of
the Tea Husiness on | October 2021, when
control was transferred ta the acquirer, Unilever
Tea Distribution Ghana Lintited,

The Tea Business comprises of property, plant
and ecquipment.

The value of the Tea Business was agreed
between the acquirer and the Dircctors as GHg
397 million and this resulted in a gain on
disposal of GHg 29.9 million as at 31 December
2021,

The key asswuption with the moest significant

the dizcount rate,

We ideittified this as a key audit mater due o
the importance of the gain on the sale to the
financiul performance of the Group in the
current vear.

impact on the valuation of the Tca Business is |

How the matter was addressed in the audit

In evaluating the valuation of the Tea Business and
subsequent gain  on the sale, we reviewed
managemnent’s external cxperts” valuation of the Tea
Rusiness and the determination of the gain on disposal

calculation. We performed  various procedures,
including the following;
® linderstanding the business rationale

underpinning the sale of the Tea Business,

e Testing controls relating to the ¢valeation of
the appropriateness of the valuation of the
Tea Business including the Directors®
independent valuers® assessment.

o lesting Qnpuls info the forecasl apainst
historical performance.

* [ovelving our internal valuation specialists to
assist with the testing of the discount rate; our
specialist’s procedures included evaluating
the equity risk premium and selection of
comparable companies for Beta cstimelion.

» Recalculation of the gain on the sate of (he
assets including, the appropriate inglusion of .
Tea Businass related assets.

e Evaluating management’s accounting and
disclosure of the sale.

The discount rate used in the valuation was
appropriatz. The calculation to determinc the gain on
the saie was appropriate. We¢ considered the
discontirued operations disclosures to ke appropriile.

Partners and Chartered Accountants: D Owusu « G Ankomiah = C Forson » A Biney « G Boye-Doku » E Martey « K Situ « Y Lartey
Associate gf Delgitte Africa, a Member of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Limited
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the Shareholders of Unilever Ghana PLC

Kex Auclil Matter

Delerred Tax Assets

As disclosed in Note 15, the Group had deferred

fax assets as at 31 Decernber 2021 of Gti¢ 37h |

| million, The balance comprises GHE 229 million

tax losses carried forward from previous Yeurs,

These deferred tax assets are recognivzed based on
their {ikelihood of recovery pursuant to forceasts
and medivm-erm plans prepared by managsment,
The recovery horizon for these delerred 1ax asscts
is five years, Estimates of future taxable income are
based on forecast of cash {Tows fram operations,
the reversal of temporary differences and the
application of existing tax luws,

The judgements and key assumptions nade by
management in their assessment include the
forecast revenue growth rates, and relared
strategties as well as the Company's ability o
execule these plans.

To the exicenl that future cash {lows and taxable
income differ significantly from sstimates, the
ability ol the Group to realise the net deferred
tax assets recorded at Lhe reporling date could
be tmpacted.

We identified this issue as a key audit matter

due o the importance of the Group’s judgment in
the recognition of deferred tax assets

and the particularly high level of tax loss
carry-forwards of which only a portion has

been capitalized due lo recoverability

prospects.

Hiww the matter was addressed in the awdit

Our audit procedures consisted of the following,
among gthers:

¢  Evalualing management’s conlrols over
the assessment and estimation process for
deferred  taxes including  forecasting
approach

e Invalving our imternal tax specialists to

evaluate the accuracy and completeness of
deferred  tax  amounts, recaleulating
deferred tax amounts and the maturil y of
tax loss carry-forwards,

¢ Assessing the future growth assumptions
used to prepare the profitability forueasts
used in the assessment by comparing
growth [vrecasts o actual vesults, and

»  Performing a sensitivity analysis by
adjusting the key assumption - growth rate
— with a perceurage to determine whether
it would affeet the ulilization of the
deferred lax asset.

°  We corsidercd the reasarsh.encss
managemant’s  disclosures  araund
recoverability of deferred tax assets.

of
the

Based on the procedures petformed, we gonclude
that management’s assumptions used n the
recognition of Lhe deferred tax assels appesr
reasonable.
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Other Muller

The financial statements of the Company for the yearended 31 December 2021 were audited by another auditor
who expressed an unmodified opinion on those statements on 23 March 2021,

Other Information

The directors are responsible for the other information, The other information comprises the Report of the
Dircctors and the Statement of Directors’ Responsibilitics, which we obtained prior to the date of this repert,
and the Annual Report, which is expected to be made available to us after that date. The other informatior does
not include the financial statements and our auditor’s repott theragn,

Qur epmion on the consolidated and separate financiul statements does not cover the other information and we
do not and will now expross an audit opinian or any form ol wssuranee conclusion Hiereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated and separate financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent wilh
the conselidated and separate financial statements or our knawledpe obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears
fo be materially misstated, If, based on the work we have performed on the other information obtained prior to
the date of this auditor’s report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

When we read the Annual Beport, if we conclude that there is 4 material misstaicment therein, we are required
Lo communicate the matrer to those charged with governance.

Responsibilitics of the Directors for the Finarcial Statements

The dircetors are responsible for the preparation and fair presenlalion of the financial statements in ageprdaice
with nlernational Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companics Act, 2017 {Act 942
and for such internal vontral as the directors determine s necessary to enable the preparativa of financial
slatements that arc fice from matertal misstaiement, whesher dus to fracd or emor,

In preparing the consolidated and separate financial statemenits, the dircetors ar responsible for aszesying the
Group's and the Company’s ability to continue as a going, concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related fo
going concern and using the going concern basis ol accounti ng urless the directors either tntend (o liguidate the
Ciroup and/or the Company or to cease operaticns, or have na reatistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Andit of the Financial Statem ents

Our objectives are 10 obtain reasonable assurance aboul whether the coasolidated and separale financial
statements 25 a whole are free from material misstulement, whether duc to fand or grror, and o issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasnnable assurance is a high level of assurance, hut s 0ot a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 1SAs will always detect a material missiatement when it
exists. Misstatements ean arise from raud or eror and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of thesc financial statements,

As part ol an audit in aceordance with 15As, we exercise professional judgement ano mainlain professional
seepticisim throughout the aodie. We also;

* ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the figansial stateineits, whethor due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedurss responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evideaee that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinien. The risk ol not detecting 2 material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intenfional omissions, misrepresentations, or the gverride of internal contral
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= Obtain an understanding of internal control 1eevam to the audit in order o design audit procedures that
aie appropriate in the circemstances, but not for the purpose of expressin E an dpinion on the effectivencss
uf'the Group's and the Company*s internal contral,

= Fvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies vsed and the reasonableness of HCCOURTNG Canimates
and related disclusures made by the directon.

» Conclude on the appropriatencss of the dirceturs’ use of the soing concern basis of accounting and pased
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncerainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group's and the Company’s ability to continue as a gomng concern. ¥ we
conglude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditar’s report o the
related disclosures in the financial slatements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, (o modily vur opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of aur auditor's reporl, However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group and the Company to coase le continue as a going concern.

* FEvaluate the overall presentation, structore and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidatzd and separate financial stalements represent the wnderlying
transactions and cvents in a mannce that achieves fair presentation.

¢ Obtain sutficient upproprinte audit evidence regarding the financial tnformarion of e entifes or business
activities within the (froup to express an opinion on the consolidated Financial staremeonts. We are
respansible for the dircetion, suprevision and performance of the group audic. We rcrniin solely responsible
far aur audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, wnang other matters, the planned seope and
timing ot the audit and significant audit findings, incfuding any significant deficiencies in i=ternal control that
wedentily during, our sudit,

Wo aleo provide those charged with guvernance with a statement that we have com plicd with relevant etiical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicats wirh them all relationships and othar matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear or our independence, and where applicabie, wetions taken to eliminate threats
or safeguards applicd.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance we determine those murters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated and scparate financial statements of the current year and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our awditor's repart unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communieated in our report because the adverse conseguences of doing so would
reasonably be expectad to oubweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Heport on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In accordance with the Seventh Schedule of the Companics Act, 2019 {Act QU2Y we expressly state that:

L. We have obtained the information and explanations. which to the “est of our riowledge and beliel were
necessary for tne purpose of the audit.

T

i Qi opinion
* proper books of accaunts have been kept by the Gronp and Company, so Far as appears from our
examination of those books.

e the information and explanations given ta us, were in the manner requived by the Companies Act,
2009 (Act 392) and give a true and [air view of the:

4. statements of financial position of the Group and Company at the end of the financial year., and
h.  statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the Finaneiul year,
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s the Group accourts have been praperly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act, 2015 {Act
#92), wr pive u true and fair view of the state of affaics, and the profit or luss of 1he compuany and
its subsidiaries.

3. The Group and Company’s statement of financial position and statement of profit or 1oss and other
comprehensive income are in agresment with the accounting records 2nd returns.

4. We are independent of the Group, pursuant to Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2019 (Act 992}

The engagement partrer on the awdlt resuliing in this independent auditor's report iy Abena Riney
(ICAG/P/I508).

Neloale « Tocha

For and on behalf of Deloitte & Touche (1CAG/F2022/129)
Chartered Accountanity

The Beloitte Place, Plot No.71

Off George Walker Bush Highway

North Deorwalu

Accra Ghana

..... bR %P*W i rerereerreeseranes 2022
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UNILEVER GHANA PLC
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 DECEMEER 2021

Group Company
021 2120 2021 2020

Note CGHé000 GHEg Q00 CHe oo GHe 000
Assels
IMroperty, plant znd cguipment HE 131.144 135,591 131,166 135,551
Right-of-Ulse assety t7afi} 10,235 {11 10,255 11,468
Deferred rax asscl. l5c 24,481 24, 5340 24,481 24,3349
Investment in subsidiaries 18a - - 10 10
Oither investment 18h 11 11 - -
Mon-currenl assels 165913 171.569 165.9)2 171,568
Ihventatics 194 91,627 9702 91,627 97.u21
Ttade aned other reccivables 20 24,539 25,003 pe B 25639
Prepayments 2 31,633 n52 3,633 632
Klated party receivables 2Re(i) 56,199 22350 56,189 22,340
Currenl tax assct 15h 14,267 12,216 14,656 12,554
Cash and hank balances 2 26,363 B.045 24.045 AT
Current assets 216,628 165947 214.665 164,153
Total assets 382,541 437,516 344,577 335,721
Eguity
Share capital 23a 121N 1,200 1,204 1,200
Capital surplus accounl. 74 2404 204 244 pais)
Retined sarmings 23hb 35,289 34 744 33,685 32314
Share deals sccount 35 81 ! A1 &
Total equity 36,774 36,249 33,170 W79
Non-current Jiabilities
Ermployes benefit oblipations 26 4,236 3,422 4,236 3,422
Long term lease liability 17a(iv) - 166 - 166
MNon-current liabilitivs 4.236 3,588 4.236 3,588
Current liabilities
Bank overdrafi 22 521,055 6,892 52,055 0,892
Trade and other payablcs 27 92,140 103,244 9.9a7 103,026
Related party payubles 2Re(m) 166,804 149,385 166,810 149 351
Dividend payahles 29 23417 33,961 22,284 33 828
Provisiuns 31 7,939 2,852 7,039 21,852
Shiort term leuse liability 178(iv) 176 1,345 176 1,345
Current liahilities 341,531 297,679 341,171 297334
Totul Hahilities 345,767 301,267 345,407 300932
Tuotal liabilitics and equity 382541 337,516 380,597 Jss

The financial statements were approwved by the Board of Directors on A’P” / 2. 2027 and signed pn their behail

..................................

5o %i

Eﬂward iffah ( ’ail'man] George(]wusu—Ansah [l'vIana.g“i.l-iEHi;-ccmr]l
Date:.zﬁ}/? q:/z’p it Daie:. 11(‘{“"( 'f U?I

The notes on pages 21 1o 75 form an integral part of these financial stulements,
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND

OTHER COMPRENENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 1021

Group Company

2021 2020 202t 2020
Coatinuing sperarivns Note {: He* 0Nk (GHg"000 GHe 0o GilH g 000
Reven e 5 526,912 324 13 516,912 424506
st ol wles 4 (429.866) _ (335482} (429.866) . {155402}
Cruss prodit 97,06 63,544 27,046 68544
Diswihution vxpenses 3 {16,723) [ 16,50%) {16,723} [16,568)
Brand and marketing investment o (44,612) (30,2907 {44.612) (30290
Administralive expenses I {79.564) (67671 {79,536} (67,637
Resliuciuting coars {607}y (2,15 (607 i2, 150
Impaitment relewss on trade & other
receivables Jobii} 2,874 23,470 2,874 23470
Chther income 1] 9,134 3,233 P RY] 31,253
Operuting profit/(loss) 132.451) f21.412) {32.424) (21,378
Finance income 13 M4 333 347 104
Firance cosls 13 2,922y {5608} (2.922) {3 608
Profit/ilnss) before taxatiom {34,804 {20,687} (35,005) (26.886)
[ncome Lax expensc JIE {51] (22 880 - (22,830}
LR - . P - H 1
I.nijlt-*iloss) [owr the year from continuing (34.851) {49.567) £35,005) 49,716}
operations
Thscontinged pperations
Profit flossi from discontinued operation L2 35,201 16738 a2l {673
Profit! (loss) for the year 350 (50,244) 194 (50.384)
Other comprehensive income
Items that will mot be reclassified fo profit or loss
Actuarial galn (loss) 26h 233 314 233 34
Related Lax I5¢ (58) 78} (58) T8}
{her comprehensive income, net of tax 175 236 175 236
Total com prehensive income 525 (50,004) i | (31550
Eamings per share
From contiouing operations
Basic earmnings/{loss) per shave i3 (.3576) {0,793 1) 5601 {8, 7055)
[iluted enrnings 4 lass) per share 34 (15576 ) (61,7931} (0308 ) {7785
Fram caontinuing and discontinued operations
Basic eamings/{loss} per share is 0.0056 (08038} 0403 [ B2y
Diluled earnings A lnss) per share is 10056 (L8033 0.0031 ((L8D02Y

“he noles on pages 21 o 75 Fomm an intepral pari of these [inancial stacemenis.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT QF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

CROUP

2021

Belaneg al | January 2021

Total comprehensive income

Profil for the vear

Oiher comprehensive inomne [hote 13c, 26h)
Total compreheniive income

Balange at 31 December 2021

2020

Balance a1 Januarey 2020

Tota, comprehensive income

Profit {or the yoar

Orher connprehenyive ineome (Mote [3g, 26b)
Totwl comprenensive income

Balance at 31 December 2021

COMPANY

2021

Radance a¢ | Janoary 2021

Total camgrehensive income

I'rodil [ur the year

(her comprehensive income {Mote 15¢. 26h)

Total comprehensive inenme

Balance at 31 December 2021

2020

Halance at T January 20240

Total comprehensive income

Prodit for the year

Orher comprehensive ncome (MNew 15e, 260

Totat cotmprehensive income

Balance 21 31 December 2020

The notes on pages 21 to 75 forn an intepral part of these financial statements.

Share
capital
GHg DD

1,200

L2040

Share
capital
GHE'000

1,200

[,200

Capital
surplus
Il 00D

2n4

204

Capital
surplus
GHe 00}

204

204

204

Retained
earnings
CaHe 00

34,764

3a0
175
_aZs

33,239

LES

{50,240
236
{50,004}

34,764

Relained
earnings
CxH¢ (NH

33514

83467

(50 3EDY
236

50,1 558)
33,314

Share
dheals
GHg WM

81

||

Share
deals
CaHg 000

gl

=

81

19

Total
equity
GHg00

36,244

350
s
525

56,774

#2532

{541,240
218
{3u0)
30,249

T'utal
equity
GIT¢HHID

34,799

24,932

(30,3803
236
(50,153)
24,74



UNILEVER GHANA PLC
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

Group
2 R
Note GHe M) GH¢M00

Cazle Aows Mrom operating activities

20

Company
2021 2020
GHe™ a0 GHe uod

7494 T0.752
{2.922) (3,608}
341 100
{2.102) (2,323)

2,811 62921

(17,587)  (8.383)

50 .
17,537 {8.883)

(11,544) -
{1.335) f1.401%

Cash generated from operating, aclivities 34 7481 0,885
Intcrest paid 13 (2,922) (5,608
Interest recetved 3 574 333
Tax paid 15k 2,102 (2.335]
Net cash from operating activities 3031 63,275
Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase oi property, plant and cguipinent l16a {17.587) [B,883)
F’m:_:a:rls froum sale of property, plant and 16c

Squipment 5l -
Net cash generated used in investing activities (17,537) {8.852)
C'ash Rlows from financing activitics

Dividend paid 29 (11,544) C
Payment of principal portion of lease liability 1 7a{fin (1,335) (1,400
Net cash used in financing activities (12.87%) 1,401}
{Decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (27,385) 52,999
Cash and cash sguivalents at 1 January 1,153 (51.601%)
Eifeet of movement in exchange rate on cash

and bank 540 (23T
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 22 (25.692) Lis3

The notes on pages 21 to 75 form an intcgral part of these financial statements,

{12.879) (1.4011

(27.605) 52,637
(945)  [53,34%)

540 (237)
28010 _(945)
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UNILEVER GHANA PLC
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

| Reporting Entity

Untlever Ghana PLC is registered and domniciled in Ghana. These consolidated financial statements as at and for
the year ended 3t Deceinber 202§ compiise the Company and its subsidiaries. The Group and Cumpanys
registered office s al Plot No. Ind/A/2/34 4 Tema. The Company is listed on the Ghana Stock Exchange. The
separate financial stalements as at and for the year ended 31 Desember 2021 comprise the financial statements of
the Company,

2. Basis ol Accovnting
a. Statement of compliance

The consolidated and separale financial slatements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Sandards {IFRS) and in the manner required by the Companies Act, 2019 (Act 9923,

b. Basis of measurement

The consolidated and separate tinancial statements are prepared on the historical cost basis excapt for defined
benefit oblipations measured at the presemt value of the futire benetit to cmployees.

C. Fumctional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in Ghana cedis {GHg) which is the Group’s functional and presentation
currency. All financial information are expressed in thousands of Ghana Cedis, unless otherwise indicated.

d. Basis of conselidation

The consolidated annual financial statements incorporate the annual finaneial sturements of the Group and all
investees controfled by the Group.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated annual financial statemenis lrom the effective date of
acquisition to the effective date of disposal. Adjustments are made when necessary to the annual financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in line with those of the Group.

Allintra-Company transactions, balances, income and expenses are eliminated in full on consolidation,

Non-contrelling interests in the nel assets of consolidated subsidiaries are identified and recognised separately
trawn the Group's intersst therein and are recognised within equity. Losses of subsidiaries atiributable ta non-
controlling interests are allocated to the non-contrelling interest even il this results in a debit balance being
recognised for non-controlling interest,

Transaclions which result in changes in ownership levels, where the Group has control of the substdiary both
hefore and after the transaction are regarded as equity iransaction and are recognised directly in the statement of
changes U equity.

The difference bevween the fair value of consideration paid or received and the movemen! in non-controlling
interest for such transactions 1s recognised in equity attributable to the owners of the parent.

Where a subsidiary is disposed off and a non-controlling shareholding is retained, the remaining investment is
measured to fair value with the adjustment e fair value recognised in prolit or lass as part of the gain or loss on
dizposal of the controlling interest,
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UNILEYER GHANA PLC
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

d (i) The Group has presented consolidated financial statements for the ficst time in the current vear. The financial
statements of the Company remain unchanged from the previous year as signed by the directors and issued m
Accra on the 31 March 2021, In the current year, there was interest income received by one of the dormant
subsidiaries on treasury bills that had been held since July 2015, The parent and subsidiarizs have the same
reporting date, and where the most yecent financial statements of the subsidiary are used, inanagement has made
adjustments for the effects of significant transactions or cvents between the reporting dates of the subsidiary and
consolidated fmancial statements. All the subsidiaries are dormant entities.

&, Business combinations

The Group accounts for business combinations using the asquisition methed of accounting. The cost of the
business combination is measured a5 the ageregate of the fair values of assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed
and equity instruments issued. Costs direclly attributable to the business combination are expensed as incurred,
except the costs to issue debt which ave amortised as part of the eflective interest and casts to ssue cquity which
are incloded inoequity,

Contingent consideration i3 included in the cost of the combmation al fair value as at the date of acquisition.
Subsequent changes to the assets, liability or equity which arise as a result of the contingent consideration are not
aftected apainst poodwill, unless they are valid measurement period adjustments,

The acquiree’s identifiable assels, liabilities and conlingent labililies which meet Lhe recognition cundilions of
[FRE 3 Business combinations are recognised at their fair values at acquisilion date, sxcept for non-current assets
{or digposal Company ) that are classified as held-for-sale in accordanes with [FRS 5 Non-current assets held-for-
sale and discontinued operations, which are recognised at Fair value Jess costs to sell,

Contingent ligbilities are only included in the identifable assets and liabilities of the acquiree where there s a
present obligation at acquisition date,

On acquisition, the Group assesses the classification of the acquired’s assets and liabilities and reclassifies them
where the classification is inappropriate for Group purposcs, This cxeludes lease agreements and insurance
coniracts, whose classification remains as per their inception date.

Goodwill is detesmined as the consideration paid, plus the fair value of any shareholding held prior to obtaining
control, plus non-controlling interest and less the fair value of the identiflable assets and liabilities of the acquires,

Goadwill i3 net amortised but is tested on an annual basis fot impairment. [f goodwill is assessed to be impaired,
that impairment (s not subsequentlhy reversed.

f. Use of estimates and jndgment

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with [FRS requires management 1o make judgements,
estitnales and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities,
income and expenses, The estimates and associgted assumptions are based on historical experience and various
other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. the results of which lorm the basis of
making judgements about the carrying values of azsets and liabilities that are not readily appatenl itom other
sources. Actual results may dirter from these estimalss,

The sstimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions 10 accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised it the revisien aftects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and [ulure periods, if the revision allects both current atd luture periods.
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UNILEVER GHANA PLC
NOTES T THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOIR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

z. Assumplion and estimated unceriainiies

(i) [nformation aboul asswmptions and estimation uncertainties at 31 December 2021 that may have a
siguificant risk of resulbing in a material adjustmeni W (he canrving amounts of assets and linbilities in ibe
rext financial year 15 included in the foliowing notes:

o Mote 26: Measurement of defined benetit obligatton: Key acruarial assimptions,

a Note 36{b)(i}: Measurement of ECL allowunce for trade reccivables: Key assumptions in determining
the weighted — average loss rate

© Note 19b: Estimate of expected returns: Key assumptions in determining refund asset and lHability

o Note 13! Recognition af deferred lax assets: availubility of future raxable profit underpinned by
revenue growth assumptions against which deductible emporary difference and tax losses carried
forward can be ulilised;

o Note 12: Discount rale used in the determining the valug of the Tea Rusincss.

{tu} Measurements of fair values

A tiumber of the Group's accounting pelicies and disclosures require the detenmination of fair value, for both
financial and non-financial assets and liabilities. 'I'he Group regularly reviews significant unabservable inputs and
valuation adjustments,

When measuring the fair value of an asset or bability, the Group uses market ubscrvable data as 1ar as possible.

Fair values are categorised inte different levels in tair value hisrarchy based em the inputs used in the valuation

techniques as follows:

o Level 1 queted prices (unadjusted) in active markets For ientical assets or liabilities.

o lLevel 2 inputs other than quoted prices included in Leve] | that are obssrvable for the asset or fiabilily, either
dircctly (i.c. as prices) or indirectly (i.c. derived fromi prices).

o Level 3t inputs for the asset and liability that are not based on observable market data {unobservable inputs).

IT inputs used to measure the fair values of asset or a liability might be categorised in dilierent levels of the fair
value higrarchy, then the fair valuc measurement (s categorised in its entirety in the same level of fair vatue
hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement,

The Group recognised transfer between levels of the fair value hierarchy al the end of the reporting period during
which the change has oocurred .

Further information about the assumptions made in determining fair values is included in note 36, linancial
instrurnent - fair values and risk management.

3. Significant Accounting Policics

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of thesc financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applicd 1o all periods presented.

a. Iovestment in subsidiaries

Investment i subsidiaries are stated at cost less impairment allowance. Note 18 provides details on the
investmernts in subsidiarics.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3] DECEMBER 2021

h. Froperty, plant and cquipmsnt
fiy Recgstiion and measrontom

lems of property, plant and equipmend wee medsuesd @t cost less acoumolated depresiation and any impairmem
losses. Cost ingludes expenditures that are directly atributable w the scquisition of the assel. When parls of an
uem of property, plant aed cquipinent have different useful lives they are sceounted for as separale ilems (maiar
cempanents ).

i) Subs ectent CO8Ts

The cost of replacing part ofan tem of praperry, plan and equipment is recoeniscd at the carrying amount sf the
item it is probable that the finore econemic benefits ambodied within the part will flow to the Group and its cost
can be measured reliahly. The costs of the day-1o-day servicing of property, plant and cquipitent are recognised
in profit or loss, as inearred.

f1ii) Dopraciation
Depreciation is recognised in profit or 1oss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of each class of

an item of propery, plant and cquipment. The estimated vsetul lives for the curent and compatative periods are
as Tollows:

Buildings - A0 veary
Flant and machinery - |41 vears
Compuler cquipmend - 5 wears
Furpitwre and Ntiogs - 4 weary
(r¥ice equipment and arthers - 5 yEars
Voulds & dics . 4 yoars
Maotar vehicles 4 years

Depreciation methads, useful lives and residual values are reassessed and prospectively adjusted if appropriate, at
cach reporting date. Property, plant and equipment s derecogitised on dizposal or when ne furote ceonamic
henefits is expected from itz use.

{iv Derveognition

Gains and losses on derecognition of property. plant and equipment are determined by comparing proceeds from
disposal with e cairying amounts of property, plant and equipment and are recognised in profit or loss.

{v {upital work fn-progress

Property, plant and cquipment under canstruction iy stated at tmitial cost and depreciuted from the dute the asser is
made avatlabic for gse ever it estimated usctul life Asscts are transterred from capital work in progress o an
appropriate calegory of property, plant and equipuiieni wien conuanissioned snd ready for s infended se.

{vi) Spare povls

Spare parts, stand by and servicing equipmenl held by lhe Group generally are classified as inventorics, Flowevei,
if major spare parts and stand by equipiment are expected lo be used for more than one period or can be used only
i connectian with an itein ol property, plant and equipment, then they arc classiticd as property. plant and
eguipnen.
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c. Leases

At inception of a contract, the Ciroup assesses whether a contract is, or containg g lease. A contract is or contains
a lease 1 the contract conveys the night to eontro! the use of an idenrificd asset for a period of time in cxchange
[or consideration, To assess whether a contract conveys 1he righi 10 control the use o an identiticd asser, the Group
uses the defimtian of 4 lease in IFRS 16,

i As a lessee
Al inception or en moditfication of 2 conrraet that contains a lease component, the Group allocates the consideration
in the coniract to each lease component on the basis of their relative stand-alone prices.

I'he Group recognizes a right-of-use asset and a lease Jiability at the lease commencement date, The right-of-use
asnel 15 nbally measuved ai cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease
payiments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial dircct costs incurred and an estimate of costs
to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlving asset or the site on which it is located,
less any lease incentives received.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated nsing the straight-line method from the commencement date to
the end ol the lease term, unless the lease transfors ownership of the underlying asset to the Graup by the cnd of
the: lease term or the eost of the right-of-use assel reflects that the Group will exercise a purchase option. In that
case the right-of-use asset will be depreciaed over the usetul life of the underlying asset, which is determined on
Lhe same basiy as those of property, plant and equipment. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced
by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain remensuremenis of the lease Hability,

The lease lability is initiadly measured at the present value of the jease payvments that are not paid at the
commencement date, discounted using the imerest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily
detarmined, the Group's incremental borrowing rute.

Generally, the Group uwses (s incremental borrowing rate as the diseount rave. The Group delermines its
incremental borrowing rate by oblaining interest rales from various exiernal financing sources and makes certain
adjstments o reflect the terms of the lease and type of the asset leased.

Lease payments included in the measurement of ihe lease lability comprise the following:
o fixed payiiens, nclvding in-substance fixed payments.
a  varioble lease payments thar depend on an fader ov q vate, initialiy measured using the madex or rate as of the
COMMIERCE R ERE defe,
a  rhowns expected to be payable under a vesidual value puarantes
O the exercise price wnder a purchase option that the Group is reasrably certain to exercise, leasy payments in
o optional rerewal period i the Group is reasonably certain 10 exrcise o extension option and
O penaliies for early termination of o lease unless the Growp is reasonably certain not o terminate garly,

The lease lability is measored af smorized cosr wsing the eftective interesw methad Tt iy remeasured when there
is a change in furire lease pavenents arising from a change in an index or rate, if there is a change in the Group’s
estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a residual value guarantes, if the Group changes its
assessment ol whether 1 will exercise a purchase, extension or termination opilon or i thewe s a revised -
substance tixed lcase payment,

When the lsase Hability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustmient is made to the canying amount of the
right-of-use assct or is recorded in profit or loss il the carrying amount of the righi-of-use asset has been reduced to
ZETO.
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{c) Leases {cone'd)
Shart-teven leases und leases of low-vafue assels

The Grroup has elected not to recognize right-ol-use assets and lease liahilities for leases of low-value asscts and
short-term leascs. The Group recognises the lease pay menis assoctated with these |cases as un expense an a
stright-1ine basis aver the lease tenn.

ii. As o lessor

Atinception ot on modiheation of 2 contract that containg a lease component, the Group allocates the consideration
in the contraet to cach lease component based on their relative standalone prices.

When the Group acts as a lessor, it deternings at lease lnception whether cach lease is a finance fease or an
operating leasc,

To classtfy each lease, the Group makes an overail assessment of whether the lease transfers substantally all of
the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the underlying asset. [F this is ihe case, then the lease is a finance
lease, 1 not, then it is an operaling lease. As parl of this assessment, the Group considers certain indicators such
as whether the lease is tor the major part of the economnuig life of the asset.

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, it accounts for its interests in the head lease and the subslcase separately.
[t assesses the lease classification of'a sub-lease with relerence 1o the right-oi-use asset arising from the head lease,
nol with reference to the underlying assel, If a head lease iy a short-term lease to which the Group applics the
exemption described above. then it elassifies the sub-lease as an operating lease,

Il an arrangement conlains ledse wnd non-lease vonponents, then the Group applics IFRS 15 o atlocars the
consideration in the contrace.

The Group recognizes lease payments received under operating icases as income on a straight-line basis over the
lease term as part of “other incoine'.

d. Inventories

[nventories are measured at the Tower of cost and net reafisable value using the weighted average cost principle.
‘The cost of inventories includes expenditure incurred in acquiring inventories and bringing them to their existing
location and condition. Net realisablc value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less
estirnated selling expenses,

The cost of inventories comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing
the inventories to their present location and condition, The costs of purchase of inventeries comprise the purchase
price, tmport duties and other taxes (other than those subsequenily recoverable by the entity from the taxing
authorities), fransport, handling and other costs dirsetly atlribulable to 1he acquisition of firushed goods, materials
and services,
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L. Financial instruments
{i) Recopmtion cmed inifial measurement

Trade receivables and debt securitics lssued are initially recopnised when they are originated. All other financial
assets and finaneial liabilities are initially recognised wheu the Group becomes a party Lo the contractual provisions
ofthe nstrument.

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without a significant financing component) or financial liability is
initially measured at fair values plus, for an item nat at FYTPL, transaction cosis that are directly attributable to
its acquisition or issuc. A trade receivable without a significant financing component is initially measured at the
transaction price.

(i) Classification and subsequent measurement
fa) Financial assets

On initial recogrition, a financial asset is classified as measured at: amortized cost; FVOCT — debt investment,
FWVOCI equity investment; or FWTPL.

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent Lo their initial recognition unless the Group changes its business
model for managing financial asscts, in which case all affected linancial assets are reclassified on the firsi day of
the first reporting period following the change in the business modal,

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both ol the following conditions and is nat designated
as at ['VTPL:

& itis held within a busincss model whose objective 15 10 hold assets to collect cantractual cash flows; and

o its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
imterest on the principal amount outstanding.

Ajl financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or FYOCT are measured at FV'T'PL. On initial
recognition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise mests the requirement 1o be
measurcd at amartised cost or at FYOC] as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting
mismatch that would otherwize arise.

i Financial assefs - Businesy model assessment

The Group makes an assessment of the objective of the business madel in which a financial asser is beld at g
portfulio leve! because this best reflecis the way the business is munaged, and informarion is provided to
management, The information considered includes:

o thestated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies in practice. These include
whether management’s strategy focuses on sarning contractual inlerest income, mainlaining a particular
interest rate prefile. matching the duration of the financial assets to the duration ef any related liabifities or
expected cash cutflows or realising eash flows through the sale of the assets;

o how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Group’s management;

the risks that affzct the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held wilhin sl busioess
model) and how those risks are managed;



2R

UNILEVER GHANA PLC
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3] DECEMBER 2021

b} Financial assets - Business madel assessment (cont'd)

o how managers of the business are compensated - ez, whether compensation is based on the fair value of the
assets managed or the contractual cash Hows collected: and

v the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons [in such sales and
expectalions about Muture sales activity,

Transiers of inancial asseis to third parties in rransactions that do not qualify for derecognition are nut cumsidered
sales for this purpese. consistent with the Group'’s continuing recognition of the assets.

Financial assets that are held for Irading or are managed and whose performance is evalualed on a fair value basis
are measured al FYTPL.,

fch Financial assety - asvessmeni whether contractual cash flows are solely paymenis of principal and
irterest

For the purposes of this assessmenl, 'principal' is defined as the fair value of the financial assel on initial
recognition. 'Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time value of money and tor the credit risk associated with
the principal amounl vulstanding during a particular period of time and for other basic lending risks and costs {c.g.
liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as a profit margin,

In assessing whether the contractual cush flows are solely payments of principai and interest, the Group considers
the contractual terms of the instrument. "T'his includes assessing whether the financial asset contzins a contractual
term that could change the timing or amount of contracrual cash fows such that # would not meet this condition.
In making this assessment, the Group considers:

o contingent evenls thal would change the amounl or iiming of cash flaws:

o Iehns that may adjust the contraciual coupon rate, including variable-vate faptures;

o prepayment and extension features; and

o tenms that bmit the Group's claim to cash flows troin specified assets (2.g. non-tecourse features),

A prepayment teature 1s consistent with the sole payments ol principal and intercst critcrion if the prepayment
amount substantially represents unpaid amounls of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding,
whiclt may include reasonable addiliunal ompensation tor carly 1ermination of the contract.

Additionally, for a financial assel acyuired at o discount or premium 1o ity contractual par amount, a feature that
permils or requires prepayment at an amount that substantially represents the contractual par amount plus accred
{(but unpaid) contractual interest (which may also include reasonable additional compensation for early
termination} is treated as conwsistenl with this criterion if the fafr value of the prepayment featurc is insignificant
al initial recognition.

fdi Fingncial avvety - Suhrequent wmeasurement and gainy and losses:
Fireneiad wsseis of amortised cost
These assets arc subsequently measured ar amortised cost using the effective interest method. The amontised cost

i5 reduced by impairment losses. Inicrest income, foreign exchange gains and losscs and impairment arc
recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition (s recognised in profit or boss.
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fz) Financiaf iabilities - Clussificaiion, subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial liabilities are classitied as measured at amortised cost and are subsequently measured at amortised cosl
using the effective imerest method. interest expense and foreign exchange gains and tosses are recognised in profit
or loss. Amy gain or Toss on derecognition is also recognised in profit or [oss,

Other financial liabilities comprise trade and other puyables, related party payables, dividend payables and bank
overdrafl

{iiE} Leveeogrition
faj Financind avsety

The Grroup derecognises a {inancial asser when the contractval rights to the cash Qows from the financial asset
expire, or it transfers the rights 1o receive the contractual eash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of
the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial assct are transferred or in which the Group neither transfers
nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and it does not retain control of the tinancial
asset.

fhi Finagncial Habifities

The Group derecognises a financial liability when ils contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled or cxpire.
The Group also derecognises 2 financial lability when its terms are modified, and the cash flows of the modified
liability are substantially ditterent, in which case a new [inancial liability based on the modified terms is
recopnised at fair value.

On derecognition of a financial liability, the difference between the carrying amount extinguished and the
consideration paid (including any non-cash assets ansferred or liabililies assumed) is recognised in profit ar loss.

fc) Tmpaivmem
{1 Mon=derivative financial assets
Financial instrarents

The Group recognises loss allowances for Expected Credit Tosses (ECLs) on financial asssts measured at
amortised cost,

The Group measures loss allowances at an amount equal o Tiferime ECLs, except for bank balances for which
credit risk (i.e. the risk of default occurring over the cxpecled life of the financial instrument) has not increased
significantly since initial recognition are measured at 12 month FCLs.

I.oss allowances tor trade receivahles are aiways measured at an amoant cqual w |ifetime ECLs.

When determining whother il credit dah ol a Dnaneial asset has wereased sigoificantdy slnce nitial recognition
and when cstimating ECLs, the Group considers reasonable and supportable information that 15 relevant and
available without undue cost or ctfort. This includes both guantitative and gualitative information and analysis,
based on the Group's historical experience and informed credit asscssment and including forward-looking
information.
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fi} Num-cderivative finaseiol assers feom d)

The Group assumes that the redit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly it it is more than 30 days
past duc.

The Craup constders a nancial asset to be In default whon:
o the debt is 124 days past the invoice date
a the debror is unlikely to pay its eredit obligations to the Group in full due  bankruptey

o lhere are adverse changes in the payment status of debtors

Lifetime ECLs are the FCLs thar result from all possiple default evemts over the expected life of o financial
instrumenL.

12 month ECLys are the poertion of ECLs that result from defauht events that are possible within the 12 months afier
the reporling date {or o shorter period if the sxpected it of the instrument is less than 12 months).

The meximum period considered when estimating ECLs 13 the maximuni contractual period over which the Group
is exposed 1o credit risk,

feasorement of FOLs

ECLs are a prohahility-weighicd estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the prosent value of all
cash shortdal)s (e, the difference between the cash fows due 1o the entity in accordanice with the eortract and the
vash flows that the Group expecls 1o receive).

B Ly are discounied at the eiiective interest rate of the financial asset,

Credi-impaived financiiol avsets

At each reporting date, the Giroup assesses wherher financial assets carried at amortised cost are credit-nnpaired.
A lnancial asset is ‘credit-impaired’ when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial assct have occurred.

Evidence that a linancial asset is credit-impaired includes the followtng observable data:

significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer,

a breach of contract such as a default

the restructuring of a loan ot advance by the Group oo terms that the Group would not consider otherwise;
it 15 probable that the borrower will enter bankruptey or other Anancial reorganisation;

S0 a0

Prevemeatinn of eflowance for BOL i the staiement of frnomciod position

Loss alowanees tor ninancial assets measured at ameortized cost are deduciad from the pross cany iy o uf
ke assets,
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fi} Mow-devivative financial assets feons'd)
Write-off

The gross carrving amount ¢f a fnancial assel is written o when the Group has 1o reasonable cxpeetations of
recovering a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof. The Group individually makes an assessment with
respect to the iming and amount of write-ofT based on whether there is a rensomable expectation of reeovery, The
Groug has a policy of writing off the gross amount when the financial asset (3 365 days past due and based on
historical experience of recoveries, the Group cxpects no significant recovery tfrom the amaunt written off.
However, financial assels that are written off could still be subjeet (o enforcament activities in order to comply
with the Group's procedures for recovery of amounts due.

fii) Non fincmeiof assers

At gach reporting date, the Group reviews the camrying amounts of its son-financial asset (other than inventotics
and deferred tax assets) o determing whether thees s any indication of inpairment, If any such indication exists,
then the assers recoverable amount is estimated, For impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the
smallest proup of assers that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely dependent of the cash
inflows of other assets and CGLs,

The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the greater of 115 value inuse and its fair value less costs of disposal.
Walue in use is based on the estimated future cashflows, dizcounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current marker assessments of the time valuc of money and risks specific to the agser or CGLL

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU excceds its recoverable amount,
Imypairreent losses are recognised in profin ar loss. They are allocated to reduce the carrving amount of the assets
in the CGL on a pro rata basis. An impaimient loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no
impairinent 1033 had becn recognised

f. Oflsetting
Financial assets and financial liabjlities are oftset and the net amount preseunted in the statement of financial
pasition wherl, and only when, the Group has a legally enloreeable right to set off the amounts and it inlends either

tue setlle them on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liabtlity simultancous!y.

(rther financial liabilities comprise trade and other payables, related party payables, bank overdrali and dividend
payables,

z. Share capilal
Cvdineary Shares

Procesds from issue nf ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs that are directly atributable to
the issue of equity insttumends are Jeducted from the inifial measurement of the eyuity instrument.
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h. Imcome tax

[ncome tax expenses comprises current and deferred 1ax. I1 is recognised in profit or loss excepl (o the extent that
it relates tn 2 husiness combination, or items recognised divectly in equity or in QCI.

(i Cluwrent fax

Curenl lax comprizes the expected tax payable or receivable on the faxable income or loss for the vear and any
adjustment 1o the tax payable or receivable in respeet of previous years. The amount of current tax payable or
receivahle is the hest estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received that reflects uncertainty related
to income taxes, it any. Tt is measured using tax rates enpacted or substantivcly enacted at the reporting date,
Current tax also includes any tax arizing from dividend.

Crurrent tax gssets and Habilities

Current tax assets and liabilities are oftsct only it the Company:
a. has a legally enforceable righl 10 set ofT the recognised amounts; and
b. intends either to settle on a net basis, or 10 realise the asscet and scule the lability simultaneously,

{17} Deferred ray

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences berween the carrying amounts of the ussels and
liabilities tor hinancial reporting purposes and the amounts used for faxation purpose. Deferred 1wy 15 not
recognized (or temporary differences on ihe initial recognilion ol assels or labililies ina transaction that is not a
buginess combination and that atfizcts neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss.

Deferred lax assels are recognised for unused tax losses, unused tax credits and deductible temporary differences
te the extent thal it 1s probable that future taxable profils will be avallable againsl which they can be used. Future
taxable prodns are delermined based on business plans and the reversal of temporary differences. Deferred fax
assets are reviewed at each reponting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that future
taxable profits will be available apainst which they can be used.

Unrecognised defared tax assets are reassessed al each reporting date and recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that future taxahle profits will be available againsi which they can be used,

Deferred tax is measurad at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary diflerences, differences when
they reverse, Using 1ax rates enacted or substantially enacted at the reporting date. The measurement of deferred
tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow fror the manner in which the Group expects to recover or
settle the cartying amount of its assets and labibities
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Fii} Dieferred o feont'd)
Deterrcd tax assels and liahilities are offsct only it
A the Cirupr hias o legally cnforceabie right to set off currenl tax asset against current s Habilition, and

b. the deferred tax asseis and the deferred tax [labilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authoriy on ¢ither;

< the smme igxabls entity; or

o different taxable entities which intend cither to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or
o realise the assers and settle the Habilitics simultaneously, in each future peried in which significam
amaunts of detarrad tax liakilities or assets are expected to be sentled or recovered.

1. Provision

Provisions for restructuring costs and legal claims are recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is probable that an ontflow of resources will be required to
seftle the obligation; and the amount has been reliably estimated. Restructuring provisions comprise employee
1ermination paymaems. A provision for restructuring is recognised when the Group has approved a detajled and
formal restructuring plan, and the restructuring cither has commenced or has been announced publicly. Provisions
are not recognised for future operating losses. Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likel{hood that
ant outflow will be required in settlement is determined Dy considering the clasy of obligations 1s 2 whole.

A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an outtlow with respect o any one item includcd in the same
class of oblizations may be small. Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditure expected to be
requircd to settie the obligation using & pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
maoney and the risks specific to the obligation, The Tncrease in the provision dug to passage of time is recognised
as fntercst expensc in the profit or 1oss,

ja Employes benefiis

The Group operates various pension schemes. Some of the schemes are gencrally funded through paymets
trustee-adminisiered funds, determined by periodic acwarial calenlarions. The Group has both defined benefitand
defined contribution plans,

{1 Short rerm benefits

Short-termt employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basls and arve expensed as the related
service is provided, A provision is recognised for the amount expected to be paid under short-term cash bonus or
profit-sharing incemtive scheme N ike Group has a present legal ot constructive obligation to pay this amount az a
resuit of past service provided by the emplovee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

(1) Defined contrrduiion phas

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefil plan under which an entity pays fixed contributions into
a separate entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further contributions if the fund does not
hold sufficient assets 1o pay all employes benetits relating to emploves service in the current and prior periods.
Obligations for contributions to defined contribution schemes are recognised as an expense in profit or loss in
periods during which services are rendered by emplovees.
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(i) Deftned contribulivn plan {cont ')

a, Social security contribution

Lnder a paticnal pensian scheme, the Group contribules 13% ol employes’s basic salary to the Social Security
and Mational Insurance Trust (SENIT) for cnployee pensions, The Group’s abligation is limited 10 the relevant
contributions, which have been recognised in the lnanoilal stalements. The pension liabililies and obligations,

however, resl with S5SNI,

b. Tier 3 Pension fund and saving scheme

The Group and the Company have a Tier 3 Pension fund and Saving Scheme for stafl and management undar
which the Group and the Company contribute 5% and 2.5% respectively o the schemne,

{fid) Defived benefit pian

The Group's net ebligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated separately for each plan by estimating
the amaunt of the future benetit that emplovees have earned in the currenl and prior periods, discounting that
amount and deducting the fair value of any plan assels.

The calcuiation uf defined benelit obligation is performed annually by a gualified actuary using the projected unit
credit method. When the caleulation results in a potential asset for the Group, the recognised asset s 1tmited to
the present value of the economwic benelil available In the form of any future refunds from the plan or reductions
in fulure comtributions W the plan. To calcolate the present value of future economic benefit, consideration is given
10 any applicable minimum funding requirements.

Re-measurement of the net delined beneilt liability which comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan
assets (exeluding interesty and the effeet of asser ceiling (iU any, excluding inleresl), are recognised immediately
in other comprehensive income. The Group determines Lthe net interest expense {[ncome on the net delined benetit
lighility {asser) for the period by applying the diseount rate used to measure the defined bengfit oltligation at the
beginning of the annual peried to the then-net defined benefit liahility (asset), laking into sccount any changes in
the net defined liability (asset) duving the period as a resull of contribution and benefit payment.

Net interest expense atd other cxpenses relating to defined benefit plans are recognised tn profit or loss. When
the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is cenailed, the resulting change in henefits that relates to the
past service or the gain or Joss on curtailment iz recognised immediately in profit or loss. The Group recognises
gains and losses on the settlement ol 2 defined benefit plan when the settlement oceurs.

i) Terminaiion

Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated by the Group belore the normal retirement date,
ot whengver an cmpioves acceprs voinntary redundancy in exchange [or these benefits. Tennination benelils arc
expensed at the cartier of when the Group can no [onger withdraw the affer of thase benefits and when the Ciroun
recognised cost Lor restructuring. L the case of an offer made to encourage voluntary redunduncy, the tenminanen
benefits are measured based on the number of employees expected to accept the offer, Benefils Galling due mare
than 12 months after the end of the reporting period arc discounted to their present value.
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UNILEVER GHANA PLC
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR TIIE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 202

1) {hther long rern henefit

Long Scrviee Award accrue to employees basad on graduated periods of uninterrupted and dedicated service lo
ihe Company. Staff who serve for icn years and above are awarded with cash donations, bundies of aluminium
roafing sheets and estimonial. The plan is not fusded, and the awards acorue over the service life of employces.
The Company's net obligation in respect of long-tenn emplovee benefits is the amount of fiture benelil thal
employees have sarned in return for their service in the current and prior periods. That benefit is discounted to
determing its present value. Remeasurements are recognised wn profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

(k) Revenue from contracts with customers
(i) Serber of voodys

The Company generates revenue primatily from the sale of its products from Foods, home care and personal care.
Refer to note {373 sepmental infonnation.

Revenue is measurcd based on the consideration spevified in a contract with a customer. The Group recognises
revenue when 1t transfers control aver a good or service to a customer.

Customers obtain centrol of goods when goods are delivered. Goods are considered delivered once the customer
acknewledges receipt of the promised goods. Invoices are generated ar that point in time. Most sales are on cash
basis and credit sales are usually payable within 30 days. The Group may allow some customers {0 relum ilems al
ihair own discretion. Returned poods are exchanged {or new gooads.

For contracts that permit the customer to return an flem, revenue s recognised 1o the extent that is highly probable
that a signiticant reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not oceur. Therefore, the amount
of revenue recognized is adjusted for expected retumns, which are estimated based on the historical data for specific
types of products. In these circumstances, a refund Bability and a right o recover returned goods assel i
recognised, The right to recover returned goods asset is measured al the former carrying amount of the inventory
less any expected costs w recover poods. The refund liahility (s included in other payables fSee Note 27) and the
right Lo recover returned goods is ineluded in inventory {See Note 193, The Group reviews its estimate of expected
returns at each reporting dale and updiles the amounts of the asset and lability accordingly.

(I Finanee income and finance costs
Fingnce income comprises interest income on Tunds invested or held in bank accounts. bntercst income is
recognised in profit or 1oss using the effective interest method. Finance coats comprise intevest expense an

borrowings and interest expense on lease liability which is presented in prodit or loss,

Bomowing costs that are not diractly attributable to the acquisition, censtmiction or production of a gualifiing
agset are recognised in profit or loss using the cffeciive interest method.

The Group bas presented inlerest expense on the lease lability as part of finance costs, separately from the
depreciation charge tor the nght-of- use asset.
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UNILEVER GHANA PLC
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

(m} Foreign curvency translation
Transactions and bafances

roreign currency transactions are ranslaied inw the fenclional curreney using the exchange raves prevatling at the
dates of the transactions or valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such wansactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in profit or loss. Foreign exchange gains and
losses are presenied in profit or loss within other income or other expenses,

Mongtary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign cwrrencies at the reporting date are translated o functional
currency at exchange rate prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items that are measured at historical cost in a
forgign currency are translated using the spot exchange rate at the date of the transaction.

{m) Dividend

Dividend s recognised as a liability in the period in which they are declared by the Board und approved by the
shareholders,

(0} Segmental reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided 1o the Chief Operaling
Decizion=-Maker (CODM). The CODM, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing perforrmance off
the operating segments, has been identificd as Excoutive Directors.

The operating segments report are based on product category which is classified as home care products, persomal
care products and foods products, because they require differenmt tlechnology and marketing strategies.

(pk Earnings per share

The Group presents basic and diluted eamings per share (EPS) dara for its ordinary shares, Basic EPS is calculated
by dividing the profit or lnss attributable to ordinary sharcholders of the Group by the waighted mverage wumber
of ardinary shares outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss
attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weiphted average number of ordinary shares owistanding for the
sffects of all dilntive potential ordinary shares.

(q) Chperating profit
Operating profit is the resolt generated from the continuing principal revenue-producing activities ol the Group as

wel] as other income and expenses related to oporating activitics. Operating profit excludes net finanes costs and
income taxes.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

4, New Standards amd Interpretations lssued But Not Effective

A number of new standards are effective [or annual periods beginning afier 1 January 2021 and early application
is permirted: however, the Group has not adepted the new or amended standards in preparing these financial
Stalciments.

A. Impact of the inilial application of Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

In the prior year, the Group adepted the Phase | amendments Interest Rate Benchmark Reform— Amendments
to IFRS 971AS 39 and [FRS 7. hese amendments modily specific hadge accovnting requirements to hedge
accounting to continue for aftecled hedges during the perind of uncertainty before the hedged items or hedging
instruments are amnended = a result of the imerest rate benchmark reform.

In the current year, the Grouwp adopted the Phase 2 ainendments Tnterest Rale Benchmark Reform—aAmendimerits
W [IFRS 9. 1A5 59, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16. Adopting these amendments enables the Group to reflect the
effects of transitioning from interbank oflered rates (JBOR) o alternative henchmark interest rates (also referred
to a5 ‘risk free rates” or RFRs) without giving rise fo accounting impacts that would not provide uscful
mformation to users of financial stalements, The Group has not restated the prior period.,

Roth the Phasc 1 and Phase 2 amerudments did not have an impaet on the Group,

B. Impact of the initial application of COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond 30 June 202 [—
Amendment to IFRS 16

In the prior year, the Group early adopted Covid-19-Relaterd Rent Concessions {Amendment 1o IFRS 16 that
provided practical relisl o Jessees in accounting for rent concessions oceurring as a direct consequence of
COVID-19. by introducing a practical expedient o 1IFRS 6. This practical expedient was available to rent
concessions for which any reduction inlease payments affected paymenls originally due vn or befbre 30 hune
2021. This amendment did not have a material impact on the Group.

In March 2021, the Board issued Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond 30 June 2021 {Amendment to
IFR5 16) that extends the pracical expedient o apply @ reduction in lease payments originally due on or before
30 June 2022,

It the current financial year, the Group has nol applied the amendment to TFRS 16 (as ssued by he Board in
May 2021).

The practical expedicnt permits a lessee fo elect not to assess whether a COVID-19-related rent concession is a
lease modification. A lessee that makes this election shall account (or any change in lease payments resulting
from the COVID-19-telated rent concession applying IFRS 16 as it the change were ot a leasc modification.

The practical expedient applivs only 1o reni coneessions veeurring as 4 direct consequence of COVID-19 and
only if alt of the following conditions are met;

* The change i lease payments results in revised consideration for the lease that (s substantially the same as, or
less than, the consideration lor the lease immediately preceding the change

* Any reduction in lease payments affects only payments originally due on or before 30 June 2022 (a reat
concession meets this condition it it resulw In reduced lease payments on or before 30 June 2022 and increased
leaze payments that extend beyond 30 June 2022).

* There is o substantive change 1o other terms and condilions of the lease
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

C. Other Seandards

At the date of authorisarion of these financial statements, the Group has not applied the following new and
revised IFRS Standards that have been issued but are not yet effective,

These standards tssue but not yet offcctive are not expected Lo have a material impact on future financial position
and performance to the Group.

- IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

- Amcndments to IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements and 1AS 28 Investments in Associates and
Joinl Ventures—Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate of Joint Venture

- Amendmenis {o [AS | Presentation of Financial Statements—Classilication of Liakilities as Current o
Noncurrett

- Amendments to [FRS 3 Business Combinations—Referenee o the Conceptual Framework

- Amendments (o TAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment—Proceeds hefore Intended Use

- Amendments to 1AS 37 Provisions, Contingent 1iahilites and Comtingent Assets—Onerous Contracts—
Cost of  Fulfilling a Conlract

- Annual [Improvements to IFRS Siandards 2018-2020—Amendments 1o TFRS | First-time Adoption of
Inlernational Financial Reporting Standards, IFRS 9 Financtal Instruments, [FRS 16 Leases. and TAS 41
Agriculture

- Amendments o [AS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements and ITRS Practice Statement 2 Making
Materality Judgements—Disclosure of Accounting Policies

- Ameudments to [AS & Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Lstimates and Errors—Deiinition of
Accounting Estimates

= Amendmentz 1o TAS 12 Tncome Taxes—Teferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a4 Single
"I'ransaction
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NOTES T THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDEDR 3}l DECEMEBER 102

&, Revenue

39

Revenue is recognized when the Group transters conirol over @ good 1o a customer. Revenue compeises the value

of goods and services invoiced less discounts and rebutes.

Group

202

GHEHID

Gross sales value 586,492

[hscounts and rebales (59,580)

Net revenue 526,912
By customer:

Third parties 523,422

Related panties {INotes 28b) 3,400

426,912

6, Cost of Sales

2020
Glig 000
471,170
{47,164}
424,006

420,918
3,088

424,006

Compauny
221 2020
GHe 000 GHg )
586,492 471,170
(59.580) A47. 164
526,912 424006

533,411 420,914
3.490 3,088
226912 424,006

Cost of goods sold comprises raw materials, conversion costs and materials seureing expenses.

Group

Group

021
CHe 000
Raw materials & conversion costs 370,004
Supply supporl 10,630
Trademark & knowhow faes 7613
Depreciation (Sole 16a) 1,506
Staff costs (Note 1da) 24 689
Depreciation an ROU Assets 374
Write-aft of FPE S
429,566

7. Profii/{L.oss) Before Tax

is stated afier charging:

2021
GHe 000
Staff cost (Note 14a, by 43,622
Depreciation of FPE (Note 1 6a) 12,119
Depreciation of ROU Assets (Note 17} 1,213
Auditor's remuneration (Note 10) 427
Directors” remuneration (ote 30 8,264

2020

G 000
310,718
10,949
2,004
10,121
19,736
1,044
335,462

20

Gliig 000
43,009
1E.425
1,796
537

4,561

Company
2021 2020
GHg' 000 GIE GO0

376,004 310,718

1,630 10,949
7613 2,004
1,506 10,121
24,689 19,736
374 1,044
5 890
429,866 355,462
Company
2021 2020

GH® 000  GHg 000
43,622 403,009

12,119 11,425
1,213 1,796
427 516

6,264 4,961



LNILEVER GHANA PLC

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMEER 2021

LR Distribution Expenses
Graup
izl 2020
CHE00 (GH#'000
Watrshouse, storage & handling expenses 16,685 13,046
Outbound distribution expenses k1] 3,522
16,723 16,568
v, Brand & Marketing Invesimenl Expenses
Group
2021 2020
GHe itlg (0
Advertising expenscs 2,362 13,323
Promotion expenses 12872 16,537
Merchandising expenscs 1,378 430)
H612 30,290
10. Adminiscrative Expenses
Group
2021 2020
GHEO60 GHE (00
Rusiness group fees 23,860 11,892
Matket rescarch cost T.173 0,197
Information technology costs 2633 b, 142
Third party service 7,799 4,662
Directors’ remuneration (Mote 30) 6,264 4,361
Professional and legal costs 5,303 3707
Bank charges 975 1,036
Ulilities 1,152 1.277
Repairs and mainienance 1,128 a4
[hsurance 424 588
Depreciation (Note THa) 1,413 1,304
Sialf costs (Note 14b} 18,933 23,273
Auditor’s remuneration 442 5337
Depreciation on ROU Assets (Note 17) 839 152
Penalties - 383
Other expenses 1,024 __606

19,564 67671

Company
2021 20240
GHg* b0 Glg (00
16,585 13,046
38 3,522

Company
21 2020
GH 00 GHg' 000
20,362 13,323
22,871 16,537
L378 A0
44,612 30,290

Company
2028 2020
GHg 008 GHE 000
23,860 11,892
AT 6,197
2,633 6,142
7,799 1,06
6,264 4,561
5,303 3,707
962 1.023
1,152 1,277
1,i28 744
426 SEE
1,613 1,304
18,933 23,273
427 516
339 732
e 363
1,024 (L]
79,536 67.637

40



UNILEVER GHANA PLC
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECENMBER 2021

11, Other lncome
Group
221
GH¢'000
Management fees 4,036
Sale of scrap o2
Income from tank farm rental 4,138
Income from dispesal of PPE {Mote 160 44
MNet exchange gain -
Income fTom sub-lease _ 14
9,134

i2. Discontinoed Operation — Tea Separation

2024
GHe 0
2,141
574

224

3255

Company
2021

Gl 000
4,036

202

4,138

44

14

2,134

41

2020
G0y
214
g74

Op 23 July 2020, (ollowing the completion of a strategic review, Unilever PLE (“Unilever” and together with its
group companizes, the “Unilever Group”} anncunced its intention to separate the Unilever Group's global tea
business (the “Tea Business™} (the “Separation™). The Tea Business is in the food segment,

With the approval of sharcholders of Unilever Ghana PLC, the disposal was completed on 1 October 2021, on
which datc control passed to the acquirer, Unilever Tea Distribution Ghana Limited. Details of the assets disposed

off, and the caleulation of the profit or loss on disposal, arg disclosed in note 165

The results of the discontinued operations, which have been included in the profit for the year, wers as follows:

Group

2021 2020

GHe'000  GHg 000

Revenus 31,882 32,273
Expenses (26,631) {32,946}
Profit / {loss) before tax 5.251 (673)
Results froim operating activities, net of tax 5,251 {673)
Ciain on disposal of Tes Business {Note 16h) 29,950 -
Profit/ (foss) from discontinued operation 35201 1673

Company
2021 2020
GHg 000  GHg 000
31,882 312,273
(26,631)  (32.946)
5251 _ (673)
5,251 (673}
29,950 -

A profit ol GHe29.93 million aroyve on the disposy! ol the Tes Business, betng the diflerence between Lhe proceeds

of disposal and the canying amount of the Tea Busingss® set assets and attributable goodwill Thers iz no income
tax for the discontinued operation as the discontinued opcration is not treated as a separate entity. Tax assessment

iz danc for Unilever Ghana PLC.



UNILEVER GHANA PLC

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOIt THE YEAR ENDED 31 PECEMBER 2021

135, Finance lncome and Cost

Group

20211 anzn
CH#EO) GHg' 008

Finance income
[nterest on deposits, ©-hills and call 574 333

Finance Cost

Interest on kease hability (Note | Talii)} (122) {401y
Interest on bank overdrafis (2,800) {5,207}
{2,922 (5.608)

14. Staff Casts

Staff costs arc charged 1o cost of sales and administrative expenses as follows:

Group
2021 20210
GH¢ 0 GHe RO
a. Cost of sales
Wages & salaries to cmployoes 22,670 18.194
Delmed contribution scheme 2.019 1542
24,689 19.736
b Administrative cxpenscs
Wages & salaries to employees 15,466 20,008
Defined contribution scheme 1,606 2,419

Employes benefits obligation 86l 385

Cther benefits - 261l
18,933 25,273
Total siaflf cosis 43,622 43,009

The average number of emplovees at the end of the year was 252 (2020 248),

15. Taxation

(a) Imcome Tax Fxpense
Group
2021 2020
{:Hg¢* 000 CGHg 000
Current tax 51 510)
Deferred tax _ - 22 830
5l 22,880

Company
1M1 2020
GHe 000 GH#'000
241 100
(122 (01}
(2.800) {5,207
(2,922) {5,608}
Company
2021 20240
GHg 000 GHE 000
22,670 18,194
2,019 1,542
24,689 19,736
16,466 20,0008
1,606 2419
861 383
s 261
18,933 22273
43,622 43,009
Com pamy
2021 20
GHe"000 GHg 00
- 2283
= 22 )m

42



UNILEVER GIIANA PLC
NOTES TO TIE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBLR 2021
15, Twxeation (cont’d)

(b} Current Tax Asset

13

Group
Balance st Payment f WHT credit  Charge for the  Ralanee at
141 during the year year Jinz
2021 GH 000 GH¢* 000 GHe 00 GH 000
Prior to 2013 3.336) - = {3,336)
2013-2015 1,800 - - 1,300
20620019 (8.393) - {8.,395)
2020 (2,285) 2 : (2,285}
2021 ) - (2,102} sl {2051}
Current tax (12.216) {2,102) al 114,267}
2020
Prior to 2013 (3,336) : (3,336)
2132015 1,800 - [L,BO0
2016-2018 2,191 - 2,191
2018 {10,586) - {10,586
2020 - £2,335) A1) (2,285)
Current tax (9931} 12,335 =0 (12,216)
Company
Balance at 1/1 ST BLERL T Balance at 31/12
during the vear
2021 CeHe ™01 G HeE M GHe¢ 0H
Prior to 2013 (3,336) - {3,336)
20132015 1,800 = 1,800
2016-2019 (8.095) - {8.695)
2020 (2,323} - (2,323)
2021 - . {2,102} (2,102}
Current Lax £12.554) (2,102) J14,656)
2024
Prior 1o 2013 (3,336) - (3,336)
152008 1,800 1,800
26-2018 1.948 - 1.948
2019 (10043 - (100437
2020 . 2.323) (2323
Current tax 1102313 {2.320) 12.554)

The above tax position is subject 0 agreement with the tax anthoritics.
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LNILEVER GHANA PLC
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

15 d Unrecognised Deferred Tax Assets

Deferred tax assets have not been recogniscd in respect of the following items, because it is not probable thar
tuture taxable profits wilt be available against which the Group and Compaiy can use the benefits there from.

Group/Company
221
{ross amount Tax effect
G Hg*000 GHg 000
Tax losses 49.611 12,403
19,611 12443
Tax Losses Carried Forward

Gross amounl Expiry date

GHg 600
Tax loss for 2021 49.611 2026
Tax loss for 2020 56,498 25
Tax loss tor 2019 36,446 2024

(e) Tax Reconciliation

The tax recorded in profit or loss differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using the statutory
incorme 1ax rate. This is explained as follows for the Campany:

2021 2020
GHg 000 GHE 000

Profit/ (loss) before 1axation 196 (27,539)
Tax calculated at the stalutory income tax rate of 25% 49 (6,889)
Tax effect of:

[sallowable expenses (&, 1200 0,305
Tax (ncentive - 12
Change in estimate from prior year - (533
Unrecognised deferred tax tor the year 5,071
Derecogmition of previously recognised deduetible emparary difforences E Q175
Current year losses for which no deferred tax is recognised - L 4.060
Income tax charge a - 22,830

Nl 83%

(et
&

Effective tax rate



608°1S
(za
(7gs's)
(9L)

F 0 |
108'8t

rraArTTE

®LG6 TR

(Y329
(68E°sL)
(78)

LRELT
ISEFEI

0.7HD

(L2 LA

FL T4l IIv =

R [E0T LT

= Li9 =

" Foet) 2.7

06 Cl ROL'T L7
(ar1'cL) s

FARIA * -

Q1L B0LT BLE
000,315  000AHD  O00LIHD
ssarfoad

-7 10m SARYss spw
[Eden Aoy SpINafy

To6¢

R

(125)
(neal)

FrL
0880

FOEG
L9y

(061)
95T
$eT

STR'R

i FHD
SL3I0

% Jmamdmbs

A0

09
{orn}
(1+¢)

Lol
L%

/R
(61N
(10t}

bLT

611°1

00 2HD

sumy »
AIMYIAN

D161 FPoTR TeF B¢
SRFL 0Eres oF6'F
[oce) (vOF) [0

= (08F't) {185)

2 (94} .

ik 19 2118 LA5
POTE TLEE OFQ'p
S6T'E PLT6IT LEFEr
(S0ET) P07y G

= (geL'11) (000°)

- (18) (1}

y A or's £98
Lo’ S0P L H1CE
0002119 000:FHD 0005 HD)
juamdinbs  Gammpaemr  s3mpng
Jandwmony W mE|g

TZ20Z ARG WADEA IE AAUANT AVIA THL HOA

SINIWILVLS TVIIN¥NIA AZLYAIT0SN 00 TFHL OL SALON
DId ¥N¥HD HIAMNIND

177201 luneme Iw ey

1CETA1E Y

JI0=3LIMw 10 pasea] 3y

[r|0s $1384E B3] U0 BASEA]YY
siesodsip ue paseagry

IBad 21y 107 HENREYD
121

unnsasadap pajenunaay

424 FARaR

SIJ0-3UT M

SDSTE B JO 2JEg
s1eseds)(]

slalsues 10 uonesyEIde)
SUOIIPRY

[y

1807y

1Z07

Auedwoy qdnod o

1uamdnby pue yuelg *aadoa g B |




TETET o1
T088F =
(ZET 1T P
STH L1 -
cecrge B
A o1z
LF0T) =
- {£7g'c)
€883 £88'8
IR LN 5
000.3H5 000 7HOD
ssaqdoad
1510, UL ydom
1eude)

¥

80L°¢

0L FHD

LRI ERY
101014

000 #HD

apy
SOy

TFET T

CERY 96

(1<) :

110°1 e

£8¢'9 £14

5788 611

{T9¢<] =

BY¢ .

£19°8 sIT1°1

000, ?HO HO.IHD

513730

# maurdinba sBumy p
2Am)nan

O

201
[L5°F

000:3HD

wrudiaba
Jn0d mo 7y

TN TIG0L
TLFIE S OF
539 =

T urg
ELR'FT 0ng's
BOF L1 BI9CE
(98+°1] -

#3C°0¢ 299y
019°Fs LERE
I FHS 00 3D
Azpupyoew ssujpnng
® B

GZ/211 € unowe SuLiaey

OTTTAL 1Y

JJ0-3TiM TI0 pasealay]

IBad 2Y1.0) a%aey )

0T 10

ucyerasdap paEjawnay

ozl EW

S]O=21EL A
siafsueiuonesierdeny
SOCHIPDY

Q11 3%

1507y

L1

{pauon}juzmdinby pue yuerq *drsdoag B9

TT0T HIdWADAT 1€ AN 4¥AL AHL 404
SINTIWILVLS I¥IDNYNIA QALVAITOSNOD AHL OL SALON
OTd ¥NVHD SIATTING




UNILEVER GHANA PLC
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

Ih{a) Property, Plant and Equipment (Cont’d)

Drepreciation has been charged o the statement of comprehensive income as follows:

Group

2021
GHg' 000
Cost of sales (Nole 4) 11,506

Administrative expenses (Note [ 0) 1.613

12,11%

2020
GHg 000

10,121

1,504

11,425

Company
2021 2020
GHg gun CiHg (00
10,506 1,121
1,613 _1.304

42,119 11,425

an

There was no indication of impaimment of property, plant and equipment held by the Group at 31 December 2021
(2020: Nil). At the year ended 31 December 2021, there was no restriction on ii1le to the Group's propetty, plant
and equipment {2020: Nil). Additionally, the Group did net pledpe any of its assets as security for liabilities

Group

Croup

{2020: Wil
b Tea Assets disposed
2021
CHé¢ 000
Gross book value (Note 16a) 15,389
Accumaulated depreciation {Note 16a) (5.592)
Carrying amount 9,797
Consideration receivable (39.747)
Gain on disposal of tea assets £29,950)
L. Other disposals in the ordinary course of business
2021
GH¢ 000
Lross book value 82
Accumulated deprecialion (76)
Carryving amount i}
Consideration received {30}
{rain on disposal of tea assets (44)

2024
GHe 000

2020
GIHg MM

Company
2021 2020
GHe 004 GHE 000

15,389 -
(5,592)

9,797 .

(39,747) -

Company

0zl 2028
GHe' 000 GHg (K]
82 -

{76 —

6 :

{50) -

{44}
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UNILEVER GHANA PLC
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

17 Right of Use Assets
a. Ax i lessee

The Company leases land and vehicles. The lease period for land is S0 vears and that of vehicles typicatly run
for four to five vears. [n 2019, a portion ol the leased land was sub-let by the Company . The lcase and sub-lease
expite in 2068,

{i} Right-of-use assels

[nformation about leases for which the Group and Company is a lessee is presented below:

Land Vehicles Total
2021 GH¢ 000 GH¢"00b GH¢* i
Balance at | January 0,347 1,121 11,468
Depreciation charge for the year {283) (930) (1,213}
Balance at 31 December 10,064 18] 10,255

Land Vehicles Total
2020 GHe* 000 GHg GHE 0D
Balance ai | January 10,565 2,664 13,422
Depreciation charge for the year (218} (1,383} (1,796)
Derecopnition of right-of-use assets® - (158} {158)
Balance at 31 December 10347 L2 11,468

* Derecagnition of the right-ol-use assels in 2020 relates to transfer of vehicle to a related entity at book value
{ii) Amounts recognised in profil or luss

Group Company
3021 220 2] 2020
GHe 000 GHEWD  GHg "0 Gl Do)

Interest on lease lability (Note 1 7(iv) 122 4131 122 401
Income from sub-lcasing right-of-use assets (Note 11) 14 (4 {14) _d)

(ii1) Amounts recognised in statement of cashfows

Giroup Company
2021 2020 2021 2020
GH¢ 000 GHg 000 GHe'000  GH# 000
Payment ol principal portion of lease liabilities 1,335 1,401 1.3335 [401
Interest payment (Note [ 7iv) 122 401 112 401

1457 1802 1,457 1.802



UNILEVER GHANA PLC

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 BECEMBER 2021

(i¥) Lease liabilities

Croup
2021 X2
GHg M0 GHE 000
Balatice at 1 January 1,511 28132
[nterest on leasc labilites 122 441
Payments made 1,457 (1802
Balance at 31 December 1T 13l

Lease liabilities included in the statement of financial position at 31 December

Group
2021 2020
G Hg" 000 GHe'000
Less than one year 176 1,345
More than one yvear B 166
176 1541
Malurity andlysis — contractual undiscounted cash Mows
Group
24021 2020
GHe CHg (00
Less than six months 128 29
Six moinths to one yeuar 59 729
More than one year = 187
Total undiscounted lease labilities at 31
December 187 L1643

Company
221 2020
GHe'00d Gl g0
1,511 2,012
122 404
(1457} (1.802)
iy i} 1511
Company
b3 1A 20210
GHe 00h  GHg'i00
| 76 1,345
- 168
126 131]
Company
2021 2020
GHg™a06  GHg 000
128 729
59 724
B 18%

187 L643

&t
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UNILEVER GHANA PLC
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOKR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 20621

7 b, Asgalessor

In 2019, the Company sub-let a portion of leased land that has been presented as pait of its right-of-usc assct,
The lease and sub-lease explre in 2063, The Company has classificd the sub-lease as a finance sublcase. The
Campany does not have any other leases as a lessor.

In 202! the Group recopnised Interest income on lease receivables of GHE14,225 (2020 GH¢14.225).

The following tabke sets out a matority analysis of lease receivables, showing the undiscounted lease payments
to be receivad after the reporting date.

Group Company
2021 2024 2021 22
GIE000 Gl 000 GLL0M GLIg" 000
Liess than one year 14 14 14 13
{ne to two years 14 14 14 14
Two to three vears 14 14 14 14
Three to four years 14 14 14 14
Four to Nve years 14 14 14 14
More than five years 583 293 585 599
Total undiscounted lease receivable 655 H69 055 LR
Unearned finance income (362) 570 (562} (576)
MNet investment in the lease 3 93 93 93
18, Invesiments
a. Inveximent in Subsidiarics
Group Company
22E 2020 2021 2020
GHeoon  GHg 004 GHe 000 GHg 00
Unilever Ghana Investmenits Linitcd - - w10 —
Name ol subsidiary Nature of % held im Coantry of
business 2021 & 2020 incorporation
United Africa Trust Limited [nvestment management 104 Ghana
Swanzy Rcal Estate Real Estale Development 100 Ghana
Unilever Chana Investments Limited Holding Company 10 Ghana
Mitler Swanzy (Ghana) Limited hanulfacturing, irmporting &
ehporting goods, wires & 100 Ghana

merchandise of all kinds

luvestments in United Africa Trust |imited Miller Swanzy and Swanzy Real Estate are less than <iHg 1,00{) and
s0 do not reflect in the list of subsidiarics above,
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UNILEVER GHANA PLC
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 21 DECEMBER 2021

18b. Other investmenis
Group Com pany
2021 2024 2 2020
GHe'00) G000 GHg 000 GHg 000
Equity [nvestment — Ghana [nion Assurance
Company Limitcd = lal = LL _= -

19a. Inventories

Group Company
021 2020 2021 2020
GHEMO  GHg 000 GHe000  GHg 000
Raw and packing malerial 32,3846 23,844 32386 23,844
Work in process 3oq 0,188 J3v4 0,194
Finished goods 24,270 36,466 24,270 36,466
Consumnable sparcs 9.661) 8907 2,600 8.907
Goods i trangil 24,723 21,480 24,723 21,489
Right to recaver returned goods 194 119 194 119
51,627 97021 91,627 97,021

Al 31 December 2021, there were no inventories pledged 8z security (2020 Nil}, The amount of inventory
recognised in cost of sales amounted to GHES29 9million (20240: GH@3335. 5million). The written-down values
of raw malerials and consurmnables and changes in work in process and Rnished goods included in cost of sales
amountad o GHEZSTE243 (2020 GHET 432,051}, Invertory items arg written down when they are ¢lose to
cxpiry. Upon consumption of these inventory items hefore expiry, the written-down values arc reversed. No
reversal of writs-down was recognised during the year (2020 Nil}.

19h, Refond Assetand Liability

Group Company
2021 2020 2021 2020
GHE™OM  GHEODD GHE00h  GHe 000

Right to recover returned goods (Noie 19a)

Balance at 1 January 119 3,522 119 3,522
Amount recognised in raw material and

conversion cost _15 (3.403] 35 3,403
Balance at 31 Lecember 14 . 119 144 119

Refund Lizbility (Note 27}

Balanes at 1 January 207 6,463 247 464
Arnount recognised in revenue 33 (6,256) 33 (6,256)
Balance at 31 December 240 207 240 207
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UNILEVER GHANA PLC
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMEBER 2021

0. Trade and Qther Receivables

Group Company

2uz1 2020 3021 20240

GHE000 GHg™O0 GHE M G000

Trade receivables 25,058 22,913 25658 22913
Other receivables 10124 17.075 10.096 17,051
Cirens oyt 35,778 39,988 35,754 30,964
[tmpairment allowance (Note 36 b{i} (11,786} { 14,660) (11,786} {14,0660)
Net amoint 25,992 25,328 23,968 25,304
Amounts due from staff 454 242 454 242
Lease receivable 93 93 3 _ 93
Total 24,539 23,663 24515 23,639

The maximum indehtadness from staff amounted to GHg454.286 (2020 241,9400,
Investment in Twifo Ofl Palm Plantation (TOPP)

Inciuded in othcr reccivablas is an amount of G2 Smillion relating to shares of Twifo Oil Paim Plantation
{TOPP) purchased from the Governiment of Ghana.

In 2008, the Company bought shares in TOPP valued af $7.2 miltion from the Government of Ghana. After the
acyuisifiol, a lawsuil was brought against the Company by IS Investment Limited challenging the sale of the
Government shares in TOFP 1o the Company resulting in an impairment of the iniial investment to
GHE2 Smillion currently held under other receivahles,

In 2012, the Supreme Court gave a ruling to set aside the sale of the shares in TOPP to the Cornpany. Following
the Supreme Court ruiing, TOPP ceased to be a subsidiary and the cost of the Investiment in TOTD in the books
of the Company was reclassified to receivables from the Government of Ghana. Subsequent to the Supreme
Court ruling, the case has been taken to Alternative Dispute Resolution {ADR), The Company has entered into
negotiations with the Government ol Ghana for the resolution of this marter,

21. Prepayments

Group Company
2021 2020 2021 2020
GHg 00 GHg'000 G Hg*00h CiHE OO0
At ] January 652 1362 632 1,382
Additions during the vear 7,096 [ 7,096 1,441
Utilised during the vear (4,115) {2,151} (4,115) (2,150

4130 December 30633 I 1,633 652
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UNILEVER GHANA PLC
NOTES TO TIHE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

Z2. Cash and Cash Eqaivalents

Group Company
2021 2420 221 2020

GHe 0 GHg 000 GHEHH GHgE 000
Short tenm investment - 91 -day ireasury bills 2,082 1,849 - -
Cash ut hank 24,281 6,196 24,045 5947
Bank balances 26,363 8,043 24,045 3,947
Bank balances in the statemznl of Nnancial
position 26,363 8,043 24,045 3,047
Bank overdratts repayable on demand and used
lor cash rmanagement purpose (32.155) {6, 892) (52.055) (6,892
Cash and cash cquivalents in the statcment of
cashflows 2569) 1153 (28,010) (945)

Included in cash and cash equivalents s a GHgSmillion fixed deposit held with Access Bank Ghana 1imited
with maturity less than 3 months from date of acquisition. The Group had no restriction on cash and bank balances
al 31 December 2021 (2020: Nil).

Bank overdraft facilities
At the reporting date, the (roup had approved unsecured overdrall facilities with cartain Tocal banks to support
working capitai ngeds. ‘Tatal limit on the tacilities amount to GLLE 193 million out of which GHESZ2 million had

been wilised by 31 December 2021, Interest is payable ar the banks base rates minus a spread. The Eacilities
expire in 2022,

23, Capital and Reserves

a. Share capital
2021 2020
No of Shares Mroceeds  No of Shares Proceeds
T Cildg =0 il GH#E N0
Authorised
Ordinary shares of no par value 100,000 - 100.000 -
Fssued and fully paid 62,500 837 62,500 4931
Vransferred from surplus - 265 - 269
02,500 1,200 62,500 1200

There is no unpaid liability on any shares and there are no calls or instahments unpaid. There are no treasury
shares. The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividend as declared from time to time and entitled
10 ong vote per share at meetings of the Company.

I, Retained earnings

This 1epresents Ui residual of cumulative annual results that are available for distribution to shareholders when
in credit,
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UNILEVER GHANA PLC
NOTES TQ THE CONSOQLIDATED FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR TIIE YEAR ENDED 351 DECEMBER 2021

24, Capifal Surplus Account
Group Company
2021 2024 2021 2020
Cllgrhng  Gilg o0 GHeg 000 GHp 0600

Bulance at | January 204 204 204 204
This represents the surplus on property, plant and equipment that was deemned as part of the cost of the related
items on the Company’s transition to Internations! Financial Reporting Standards,

25, Share Deals Accaunt
Group Company
2021 2020 2021 2020
GHe¢’000  GHg'000 GHE 000 GHe 000

Balance at 1 January _%1 81 . 81 . 8]
The share deals account was created in tine with section 63 of the Companies Act, 2019 (Act 992} 1o purchase
the Company's pwn shares,

26. Employee Benelits Obligations

{1) Ex-gratia pensions

Ex-gratia pensions is an unfunded scheme for retired empioyees of UAC {Africa) Ghana Limited. These
unfunded pensigns were granted to bring the total pension (including Social Sseurity) received by rotired
mernbers from UVAC (Africa) Pension Fund to an agreed percentage.  For current members of the Managers®
Pension Scheme. this practice is not applicable,

(i) Other long-term benefits

Long Serviee award is an unfunded scheme to reward staff for thelr continuous and dedicated service to the
Company. Staff who serve for ton years and above are awarded with cash domations, bundles of aluminium
roofing sheets and testimonials. The plan is not funded. The awards vary depending on the mumber of years
served hy employees who mect the eriteria.

For the above schemies, a fiul]l and independent actuariai valuation was carried out at the end of the year using the
Privjected Unit Credit Method in accordance with IAS 19 revised.

a Assumplions
The major assumptions used by the actuaries for the twe major schemes are as follows:

2021 2020

Yo Yo

[Jizcount rate 20.8 22.0
Salary intlation 15.0 16.0

Pension inflation 1%y i0.0
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UNILEVER GHANA PLC
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

27, Trade and Other Payables

Group

2021

GCHe (o

Trade pavables 47,209
Accrued liabilities 21,734
Trade Terms Structure accrual 5851
Other pavables 17,076
Refund Liability 240
92,140

13, Related Party Transactions

2020
Gilg oo
51,691
27,720
6,517
17,109
_ 207
103,244

Company

2021 2024
GHg 000 CrHg i)
47,209 31,691
21,713 27,714
5.881 6,517
16,864 16,897
240 w7
21,907 103,026

58

The Company is 74.5% owned by Unilever Overseas Holding Limitad and UAC International Limited through
4 cammat control of its ultimate parent Unilever Ple. It is related to other Unilever operations across the world
by virtue of commaon ownership by Unitever Overseas Holding Limited. Transactions and balances with related

parties are a5 tollows:

a. Purchase of goods and services
Group

mH M2
GHe¢ 000 GHg 000

Ullimale parent
Unilever PLC 28,300 12,619

Other affiliates

Unilever Philippines - 1,150
Unilever Nigeria PLC 1,950 3,348
Unilever Cote d'lvoire 2346 2,048
Uhnilever Gulf 2,104 2278
Unilever Vietnam 55,766 38,772
Unitever Asia Private Limited 5,701 8,239
Unilever UK Central Resources [Limited 296 g
Unilever South Africa {Pty) Liited 2045 g3
Unilever Supply Chain Company AG 3022 5,237
Unilever M.V, - 60
Unilever Indonesta 8.730 3,586
Unilever China Limied - 3.822
Lnilever Sichuan 4,076 6,464
Unilever Endustrics Private Limited 024 a2
Unilever Kenya Limited 1,094 34
Unilever Europe - IT 337 -
Unilever Sri Lanka 241 -
Lever [memational Marine Sup 1,333 183
Unilever Tea Distribution Ghana §.td 2,639 -
33,226 17,555

Company

211 2020
GH¢ M GHg 000
28300 12,619
- 1,150
1,950 3,368
2,346 2,048
2,14 2,278
55,766 38,772
5,701 239
296 382
1,045 930
3,022 5,237
- 560
8,730 3,586
- 3.822
4,076 464
624 302

L9 3
557 -
341 -
1,333 183
2:633 -
93,226 71,333



UNILEVER GHANA PLC

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

28. Related Party Transactions (cont’d)

b. Sale of goed and services
(iroup
21 202
GHeg™00o GHE004
Unilever Cote d'{veire (Note 5} =X L1 3,088

(el Related parly reecivable and payable balances at 31 December

59

Company
21 2020
CaHEOM G HE 000
3,490 3,088

The following are rolated party balances at year end. These oulstanding balances are not subject 10 any
commitment, conditionalities and other considerations to be provided in respect of settlement and in addition to
any puaraniee given or to be received, In addition, no provision for doubtful debt or bad debt oxpensa has hean
recorded in relation 1o these balances during the year (2020: Nil). All outstanding balances with these related

parties are 1 be settled in cash.

G roap
2021 2020
GHe ' (HH GHg 000
{i) Related party receivables

Other affiliates

Unilever Nigeria Plc 2,261 1,957
Lnilever Cote &7 lvoire 54 18,724
Uinilever UK Central Resources Limiled 1,443 1,456
Uni#lever Tea Distribution Ghana Ltd 51,407

Other related partiss 1.4 173

56,199 22 350

{ii) Related party payables
Ultimate parent

Unilever PLC 92,871 66,793
Linilever South Africa (Pry) Limited 467 530
Lnilever Migeria Plc 27,147 2314
Unilever Cote d" Ivoire 1,648 25,286
Unilever Gulf 298 2,239
Llnilever Asia Private Timited - 4,203
Umilever Yietnam 24,151 23918
Unilcver Philippines - 72
Uinilever Indonesia 3055 -
Unilever Industries Private imited hl4 43§
Inilever Supply Chain 3,032 B4
Unilever Sichuan 321 -
Unilever Tea Distribution Ghana 1.td 2,639 -
Uninlever Sr1 Lanka Limited 953 -
{her Related Parties L178 418

166,504 149,585

Company
2021 2020
GHE 000 1000
2,261 1.957
L2 18,724
1.443 1,496
51,407 -
904 ——163
56,189 22,340
02 871 068,793
467 330
27,147 25314
1,648 25,286
208 2,234
- 4,293
24,151 23918
. 72
5.085 -
fild A58
332 ®4
3,721 -
2,639 -

933

1,184 I P
166810 149,391
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UNILEVER GHANA PLC
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

29. Dividend Payable

Group Company
1 2020 {2 2020
Glg oou Gl 000 GHe¢'00b GHg'000
Balance at ! January 313,961 33,961 33,818 33.82%
Payments during the year (11.544) - (11,544} -
Balanee at 31 December 22,417 33,961 _ 22284 33,828

30, Key Management Personnel Com pensation

Key management persounel are those persons having authority and responsibility for platning, directing and
controlling the activities of the Group and Company directly ot indirectly including any Direclor {whether
cxecutive or etherwise) ol the Comnpany.

Key management personnel compensation included the following:

Group Company
2021 2020 20 2020
GHe' 0 GHe'000 GHE000  GIHEM
Short-term emplovee bencfits

Executive Directors 5,288 3.754 5,288 3,734
Mon-executive Directors 592 573 592 373
Other key management personine 3.203 1,493 3,203 1.493
Total short-term emploves benefits 9,083 5,820 9,083 5,820
Post-em ployment bencfit

Cxecutive Directors 384 23 384 234
Other key management personnel 287 117 287 117
Totul post-employee benefits a7l 351 671 351
Amoumnt relating to:

HMrectors 0,204 1,561 6,264 1,541
Other key management personnel 3420 A1 3,490 1,600

Total emplovee benefit 9,754 4,171 9.754 6171
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LNILEVER GHANA PLC
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

I Provisians
Group/Company
Legal CS5R & AGM Tuoial

CHZ* 000 GIENM G HgB00
2021
Balance at | January 2,176 676 2,851
Provisiens made during the year 10,316 - 10,314
Provisions used during the year (4.553) {676) {5.229)
Balance at 31 December _1,939 R 2,939
1024
Balance ar | January 06 672 1,378
Provisions made during the vear 2,070 fi7h 2,746
Provisions used during the year A600) (672 (1,272
Balance at 31 Decemnber 217 . 676 2,852

Legal provisions relate o legal claims against the Group, the outcome of which is mncertain. Provision for the
legal cases is the hest estimate of claims from legal actions brought against the Group for which the Company
has assessed that il is probable judgement may go againsi the Group.

Corporate Social Responsibility & AGM provisions relate to Amnual General Meeting expenses and expenses
related to CSR projects {or which the amount and timing is uncertain.

3. Contingencies

The Company has a pending legal case before the court for which the potential Liability of GH¢ 1.04 mitlion
(2020: GHERZ6,000) was not provided for in Note 31. In the opinion of the Directors, there is no prabability of
an outflow of resources rexulling from this case. Based on legal advice, the Directors do not expect the cutcome
of the action 1w have a material effect on the Group’s finaneial position chances of losing this case is remote.

I 2014, Ghana Revenue Authority {GRA) submined a report on the Company's transfer pricing audit for 2012-
2016 years of assessment. The audir resulied in a tax liability of GLIg 6,236,200, In the opinion of the Directors,
the Company has enough evidence to justify the expenses which gave risc to the liability. The Company has
objected to the report and paid GH¢ 1,559,500 a3 part of 50% of the disputed tax Hability to sustain the objection
in line with section 42(5) of the Revenue Administration Act, 2016 {A915). The Company has appeated against
GRA's decision 1t court
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33. Commitments

Taotal capital expenditure commitments at the reporting date were as follows:

Property, plant & equipment contracted

34 Cash Genersted from Operations

Profit{10ss) for the year

Adfusimenss far:

Depreciation on PPE (Wotc 16a)

Profit on disposal of Tea assets (Nole 16b)
Profit on disposal of PPE in the ordinary course
of business (Note 16c)

Write-nfi of PFE

Depreciation on BOU asset (Note 17a{))
Derecogrition of ROU aszer (Note 17401
Unrealised exchange difference

Employment benetit and retirement plan
expense (Note 26b)

Actuarial loss/gain) on employves benefits
(Notc 26b)

Benefits paid {Note 26b

Decrease in inventories

Decrease in trade and other receivables
{Increase)Drecreass in prepayient

Decrease related parly receivables
{Decrease) Incrcase n trade and other payahles
Increase’ {Decredse) in related party pavables
Increase in provisions

Tax charge

Interest on bank overdraft (Note 13}

Interes! on lease liability (Nide 13)

Intevest income {Motz 13}

LCash generated from operativns

Groop
2021 2020
G HE Oy GH# 0
— 2511 3
Group
2921 )
GH¢"000 GHg 000
350 (50,240
12,119 P1.425
{29,050 -
(44)
50 290
1,213 1,756
- 158
(540) 237
%09 1,577
293 {992)
{R&0) {585)
5,394 (8,638
1,124 88,823
(2,981} 710
5,808 13,552
(11,104) 15,932
17,419 {6063
5,087 1,474
51 22,880
2,800 3,207
122 401
(574} (333}
2481 10,885

Company
2021 2020
CHg' 080 GHE 000
— 2,811 -3
Company
2021 2020
GHe 000 CHTE Q00
196 (3,389
12,119 11,425
{29,950y -
(44} -
30 B9
1,213 1,766
- 58
{540) 237
909 1,577
998 (992)
{8o0) (383}
5394 1E.638
1,124 BB.677
{2,981) 710
5,898 13,552
{11,119 15911
17,419 {60,665}
5,087 1.474
- 22,830
2800 5,207
122 401
40 _(100)
Ly 10,707

62
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35, Basic Carnings / {Loss} Per Share
The calculation of basic and diluted EPS has been based on the following profitfloss atibutable to ordinary

shareholders and weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding. This cxcludes ordinary shares
purchased by the Company and feld as treasury shares.

Group Company
Eflrnlngs per share E‘mm continuing and 2021 2030 2021 2020
discontinued nperations
Profit/{loss) atrributable to equity holders (GHg™ 0003 350 (50,240) 1 (50,389

Weighted average number of ordinary shuares [n issue
(Note 23)(GHg 000)

Rasic earnings per share 0.0056  {1.8038) 00031 {0.38062)
Diluted carnings per shars 00056  (0.B038) L0031 (0.8062)

62,500 a2 5300 62,500 62,500

Farpings per share from discontinued operations

Profit{loss) attributable to equity holders (GHg 000) 35,201 (673) 35,201 {673}
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue .
(Note 23) (GH¢*000) 62,500 62,500 062,50 62,500

Dasic sarnings per share 0.5632 0.O108 0.5632 0.0108
Dijuted earnings per share 0.5632 00108 0.5632 00108

At the reporting date, the basic zarnings per share and the diluted eminings per share were the same as there were
no dilutive potential ordinary shares,
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3o, Finamcial Instrument — Fair Values and Risk Management

a Accounting classification and fair values

a4

The following table shows the carrving amounts and fir values of financial asscts and fnancial fiabilities,
including their levels in the fair value hierarchy . 1t dnes not include fair value infonmation for financial assets
and financiz| liabilities not measured ai fair vaiue if the carrving amount is a reasonable approximation of fair

value,

Group

31-Dec-21

Financial assets mot measnred at fair value
Trade smd olher receivables (Wole 20
Related party receivables (Note 28:(i))

Cash gnd bank balances (Note 22)

Fimancial liabilities not measured at fair value
Trade and other payables (Note 27)

Related parly payables (INote 28c{1i))

Dividend payable {Note 29)

Bartk overdraft (Note 22)

Lease lighilities (ote 1 7)

31-Dec-20

Financial asscts not measured at fair value
Trade and other receivables ( Note 20)
Related party receivables {Note 23¢{i))

Cash and bank balances {Note 22)

Financial Babilities not measured at Mair value
Trade and other payables {Note 27)

Related party payables (Note 28c(iL))

Dividend payable (Note 29)

Rank overdraft (Note 27

1 ease diahilitics (Note 17)

Other Mnancial assets
at amortised cost
GH¢ 00U

24,539
56,199

107.101

75 663
22,350

8,045
36,058

Financial
liahilities Total
GHg 000 G He 000
- 24,539
< 56,199
- 26,163
= I07, 101
G2 140 92,140
166,804 166,804
22417 22,417
52,055 52,055
176 —_ 176
335,592 233,500
- 25,663
- 22,350
= B.045
- 56,058
103,241 103,244
149,385 149,385
33.98] 33,961
6,892 0,892
1.511 151
294,993 294,993
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36, Fingncial {nstrameni — Fair Values and Risk Manragement fcoat’d)
Other financial asscts Financial
Com pary at amortised cost liahilities Total
31-Dec-21 G H g0 GHg 000 G HE 004
Financial assets not measured at fair valne
Trade and other receivables (Mot 20) 24,515 - 24515
Relatced pany receivables (Note 28c(i)) 56,189 . 56,189
Cash and bark balances (Note 22) 24.045 - 24,045
104,749 — 104,749
Finamcial liabilities not measured at fair value
Trade and other pavables (Note 27) . 91,627 91,627
Related party payables (Note 28¢(ii)) - 166,810 166,810
Dvidend payable {Maote 29) - 22,284 22,284
Bank overdrafi (Mote 22} - 52,0355 52,055
Lease liabilities (hote 17) - 176 176
— 32952 33298
J1-Dec-20
Financial assets mot measorved at fair value
Trade and other receivables (Note 203 25,639 - 25,639
Related party receivables (Note 28¢(i)) 22,340 - 22,340
Cash and bank balances (Note 22) 5.947 - 5947
53,926 — 53,926
Financial liabilities not measured at fair valoe
Trade and other payables (Note 27) - 103,026 103,026
Related party payables (Note 28e(1i)) - 1493651 149,591
Dividend pavable (Note 29) - 33,828 33,828
Bank overdraft {(Notwe 223 > 6,892 6,592
Lease lialnlities {MNote 17) - 151 1,511

i 294,648 294,648
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36, Financigl Insteument — Fair Vaines ard Risk Management fconi'd)

() Financial risk management
(i} Overview
‘The Group has exposure w the following risks from its use of financial instrumeints:

& Dlarket risk
s Credit risk
w  Liguidity risks

This note presents information about the Group’s exposure to each of the above nisks, thes Group’s objectives,
policies and processes for measuring and managing risk, and the Group’s management of capital.

Risk management framework

The Roard of Dircetors has overall responsibility for the establishment und oversight of the Group’s risk
management framework.

The Group's managemcent team is responsible for developing and monitoring the Giroup’s tisk management
policies. The team meets periodically to discuss corporate plans, evaluate progress reports and action plans 1o be
taken. Risk issues that may have financial reporting implications are brought to the atlention of the Finance
Director for the necessary action to be taken, The management team reports regularly 1o the Board of Dhrectors
on their activities,

There is an internal audit function which monitors compliance with intemal procedures and processes and aiso
assesses the effectiveness of internal controls.

The Group's risk management policies are established {o identify and analyse risks faced by the Group, to set
appropriate risk limits and centrols and to moenilor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and
syslems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions, products and services offered. The Group,
through training, management standards and procedures that have been adapted aims to develop a disciplined
and constructive control environment, in which all employees understand their roles andl obligalions.

(a) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes 10 market prices such as {oreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity
prices will allect the Group's income ar the vilue of its holdings of inancial instruments, The obfective of marker
risk managemeni is to manage and controt market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising
the retarn.

{i) Foreign curreney risk
The Groups is exposed to curreney risk on sales, purchases and borrowings that are denominated in cutrencics

other than the functional currency. The currencics in which these transactions primarily are denominated are the
United States Dollar (US3), Euro (£), British pound (GBP) and South African Rand (ZAR).
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‘The Group and Company's cxposure to foreign currency risk are reported in foreign denominared balances as
fallows,

2021 s} ELRO GBP LAR
Rank balanoces 2,158 R 21 [
Related party receivables 462 217 3 -
Trade payables {219) (62} {13} -
Related party payahles {9672} {4997 {30} (1.048]
Net ex posure [2.274) {264) {28} (LMD
2k LS} EURDY GRP ZAR
Bank balances 514 103 o7 145
Related party receivables 663 2,525 3 -
Trade payables (499) (231) {12) ;
Related party pavables {5,325} (3.391) {76} (3}
Net exposure 4,647 1994 12 142

The following significant exchange rates applied during the year.

Averape Rate Reporting Rate
Cedis 2021 2020 b 24| 2020
SEIp N 590 5.790 6.15% 5.88
FUR1 T.01 .67 6.97 7.23
GBP 1 8.14 7.45 831 8.0
ZAR 0.40 035 0.39 0.48

Sensitivity analysis on curvency risks

The following table shows the effect of a strengthening or weakening of Gl1g against all other currencies on the
Group and Company’s profit or loss and equity. This sensitivity analysis indicates the potential impact on profit
or loss and equity based on the foreign curency exposures recorded a1 31 December (ses “foreign currency risk™)
and it does not represent actual or future gainy or losses. The sensitivity analysis is based on the percentage
difference between the closing exchange ratc and the average exchange rate per curency recorded in the course
of the respective financial vear.

A strengthenmp/weakening of the GHg, by the rates shown in the table, against the following curmrencies at 31
[ecember would have increasedidecreased equiry and profit ar loss by the amounts shown below,
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This analysis assumes that all other variahles, in particular interest rates, remain constant.

Impuet belore tax for Group/Cormpany

68

As of 31
Becember, 2021 2020
Profit ar Profit or Profit or Profil or
loss/eguily loss/equity lnss/eguity less/equity
impact: impact: impact; impact:
Ya Strengthening Weakening Vi Strengthening Weakening
currency Chatge CHg 000 GHe 000 Change GH# 000 (iHg 008
LsD £4.2 1,872 (1,872 £2.4 056 {056)
EUR 0.6 (N (11 8.7 697 (697}
(Rp =2.1 3 (9] 8.3 (2) 3
ZAR £2.5 Lo £l e )] 9
As ol 31
December, 2021 2020
Cquity, net of Equity, net of Fquity, net of  Equily, nel of
tax impact: tax impact: tax impact: tax impact:
% Strengthening Weakening %% Strengthening Weakening
Currency Change CrHg 000 GHg 0] Change CPHE D00 GH¢ 000
Ush 4.2 1.404 {1,404} £5.2 492 f4%2)
EUR 0.6 2 (&) 8.7 523 {523}
GBP +2.1 4 (4] +8.3 (&) (6)
ZAR +2.5 B 9] e (6} {6
{ii} Interest rate risk

At the reporting date, the profile of the Group and Company’s interest-bearing financial instruments comprised
the followng firancial instruments:

Carrying amounts

2021 2020
G HE () Gl g o)
Fixed rate instruments
Lease liabilities __176 _LS1L
Variable rate instruments
Rank overdrafi 52,055 _6.892
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Sensitivity analysis for variable rate instrument on Group/Company

A 200 basis poinds Increase in inlerest rates al the reporling date would have increasedTdecreased) equity and
profit or loss by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that ail other variables in particular {oreipn
currency rates remam constant. The analysis s performed on the same basis for 2020,

As of 31 021 2020
December
Ingome [ncome
staleement irmpact stalement impact
% GHg:000 Fquity % GHE 000 Cquity
Change GHe'GO0 Change GHg 000
Bunk overdraft +2 {399) 309 12 {648} 648

Fair value sensitivity analysis for lixed rate instrument

The Group dees not account for any fixed rate financial assets and Habilities at fair value thraugh profit or loss,
Therefore, a change in interest rates at the reporting date would not affect profit or loss,

A change of 200 basis paints in interest rates would have had no impact on equity (2020: GHg Nil). This analysis
assumes that all other variables remain constant,

b} Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss te the Group if a customer or counterpatty to a financial instrument fzils
to meet its contractual obligations and arises principally from trade and other receivables.

Exposnre to credit risks
The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure 10
credit risk at the reporting date was:

Group Company
021 20H) 2021 2020
GHe 000 GHg 000 GHL 00 Gl oo
Trade and other receivables (Mote 20) 24,539 25,603 24,515 23,659
Related party receivables (Note 28¢) 56,199 22,350 56,189 22,340
Bank balances (Wote 22) 16,363 8,045 24045 5,947
107,101 36,038 104,749 23,926

{i) Trade and other receivahles

The Growp's exposure to eredit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. The
credit controller assesses the credit quality of each customer, taking into account its financial position, pas
experience and other factors. Individual risk limits arc sct by the Board and the utilisation of credit limits is
regularly monitored. The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk at 31 December 2021 and 2020 is the same
as the trade and other reccivables in the statement of financial position,

There s no off-balance sheet credit risk exposure.
No collateral is held for any of the assets below. The Group does not grade the credit quality of receivables. All

receivables that are neither past due nor impaired are within their approved credil limits.
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Expected credit loss assessment

The Group applies the [FRS 9 simplificd approach to messuring expected credit losses {ECLs )} for trade and other
receivables at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs. The ECLs on trade and oiher receivables are caleuiared based
on acual eredit loss experience over the preceding five years on the total balance of non-credit impaired trade
and othor receivables. The Group’s eredit loss experience has shown that aging of receivable balances is primarify
due to negotiations about variable consideration,

The following table provides information about ihe exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade and other
receivables from individual customers as at 31 December 2021,

2021 2020
Weighted Luss Weightad Loy
Average Gross  allowance MNet averapge Oross allowance  Met
GH¢ GHg GHg

GH'000  GHe'000 GHe'o0¢ (00 GHg'00n THO GHE'DO Do
Neither past due nor

impaired 0 -5%, 15,032 (751 4957 0-3% 1,390 {1y 1,389
[ 10 3 months past
due 6-15% 1,208 ey  1.148 G-153% 10,034 {40y 10,014
3-6 maomths past due 16 - 50% B3 i12) 71 I6-50% 2,337 (%1y 225
612 months past
due 51 - 65% 76 31y 45 31-63% 4,768 (1.236) 3530
Past duc above |
year 75% 100% 11,607  (11,607) - 3% -100% 20974 13,302) 7.672
28,006  (11.786) 16221 39,521 (14.660) 24,861
The movement in the allowance for impairment was as foltows:
Group Company
2021 2020 2021 2020
G HEHN0 CiHg 000 GH¢ 000 Glig:oon
Balance at | tanuary 14,664} A3,455 14,6610 63 455
[mpairment credil recognised in
profitfloss {2 A874) (48,7953 (2.874) {48.793)
Falance at 31 December 11,786 14,660 11,786 14,660

In 2021, customer balances amounting to GHE LO3million were wrilten off (2026; GH¢25.3million). This has
been included in the impajnnent amount presented on the statement of comprehensive income.

(i) Cash and cash equivalents
The bank balances are held with credit worthy banks regulated by the Bank of (Ghana.
impairment on cash and cash equivalents has been measured on a 12-month expecied loss basis and reflects the

short-lerm maturities of the exposurss. The Group considers that its cash and cash equivalents do not have a
significant credit in 2021 {2020; Nil).
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(i)  Related party receivables

The Group's expasure to credit risk in respect of the amounts due [rom related parties s minimised. The Group
has transacted business with related parlies over the years and there hay been no defanits in payment of
outstandimg debts. No impairment has been recognised with respect 1o amounts duc irom related parties in the
cureent year (2020: Nil).

c. Liquidity risk

Liguidity risk 15 the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting, the obligation associated with its
financial liabilities thal are settled by delivering cash or another tinancial asset. The Group manages liquidity
risk by maintaining adequate cash reserves and falling on short wrm borrowing. Prudent liquidity risk
management iieludes maintaining sufficient cash balunces, and the availabllity of funding from an adequate
amount of committed credit facilities. Due o the dynamic nature of the underlying businesses, the finance
department maintains flexibility in funding hy matntaining availability under committed creedir lines.

The Group however reporied a net current liability position. Measures put in place to mitigate this position are
disclosed in note 38.

Managsinent monitors rolling forecasts of the Group'y liquidity reserve on the basis of expected cash flow.

The table below analyses the Giroup’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining
period at the reporiing date 10 the contractuat maturity date. Balances duc within |2 months equal thelr carrying
balances, as the impact of discounting is not signi ficant. Sinee discounting is not applied to any of thesc disclosed
amounls, the amounls per lhe lable can be weeonciled o the amounts disclosed in the statement of financial
posilton.

The [eliowing are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilitics at the reporting date. The amounts
are gross and undiscounted.

Contractual cashflows

it Carryi b ths or . Above
frove [ Total s 1ImBS
2021 G0 GHe o  GHe 000  GHe HW G HgE 000
I'rade and other payables {Nowe 27) 92140 2,140 91,140 -
Related party payables (Note 28) 166,804 166,804 166,804 5 -
Dividend pavable (Note 24) 22417 22,417 2A17 5 -
Bank overdraft (Mote 22 32,0385 52,055 32,055 -
Lease liabilities (Mote 17 iv) 176 1'T6 176 - -
Net exprosnre 33359 333,502 333 502 _ - -
2020
Trade and vibier payables (MNote 27) H03,244 107,244 053,244 -
Related party payables (Notc 28) 149,385 149,385 (49,385 - -
Dividend payable (Note 29) 33,861 33,961 35,961 - -
Bank overdrafi (Note 22) 0.892 6,802 6,892 -
I.zase liabilities (Mote 17 iv) 1,311 1,511 728 0le 166
el exposure 294993 204995 294211 016 166
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c. Ligquidity risk fcont’d}

Com pany c::g::ﬁ Total ﬁmlhi:;: H-1Zmths
2021 GHg0)  GH# O GHewidp G HE U
Trade and other payables (Nole 27} 91,907 o1,907 91,907

Related party payables (Note 28) 166,810 166,810 166,210 -
Dividend pavable (Note 29} 22,284 22,284 22,284 a
Bank overdraft (MNotc 22) 52,055 52,035 52,053 -
Lease liabilities (Maote 17 iv) 176 176 178 -
Net exposure 333232 333230 335322 —
M0

Trade and other pavables (Note 27) 103,026 103,026 1030026 .
Related party payables (Note 28) 142,351 149,341 149,591 -
Dividend payable (Noeie 293 33,828 33,828 33,828 -
Bank overdrafi (Note 22) 6,802 6,852 6892 -
[.ease liabilities (Note 17 iv) 511 1,511 T 4l6
Net expasure 294648 204648 293866 616
e Capital management

72

Abave
I2mniths
HEU

The Group’s objeciives when managing capital are to safoguard the Group's ability to continue as a going,
congern in order to provide retumns for sharcholders and to maintain an optimal capital strucute 10 reduce the

cost of capital. In order to maimain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may limit the amount of

dividends

paid to shareholders, issue new shares, or sell assers to reduce debt. The Group monitors capital on the basis of
the geaving ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total capital. Net debt is calenlated as 1otal
liabilities less cash and bank balances. The Group®s adjusted net debrs to equity at 31 December were as Tollows:

Gronp Company

202t 2020 X021 2020

GHe 0(H) GHE 000 GHe¢000 GHg 000

Total lizhilities 345,767 301,276 343,407 00,922
less: cash and bank balances {Note 22) (26,363) (8 045) {24.045) {5,947}
Met debt 319,374 29322112 321,362 294,975
Total equity 36,774 36249 35170 34799
Net debt te adiusied equity ratio 808 .09 _9.14 _8.48

There was no change 1o managetment’s approach Lo capital management during the year, There are oo
externally imposed capiral requirsmernts,
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37, Segment Information of Group

Management has deteninmned the operating segments based on the reports reviewed by the Executive Directors
that are used to make strategic decisions. The Executive Directors consider the business from a product
perspective, The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same. The Group accounls for inter-
segment sales and transfers as il the sales or transfers were to third partics, i.e. a1 current market prices. The
Executive Directors assess the performance of’ the operating segments based on a measure of rct profit. The
Ciroup’s reporting segments ate based on products, namely Foods, Home Care and Personal Care. Under the
Foods division are Savoury and Health & Wellness. The Home Care division comprises the Laundry and
Household care categaries, The Personal Care division has the Skin Cleansing, Skin Care, Oral and Deadorant
categories.

Costs relating to segments have been allocated on the following hasis: Costs such as capital are directly charged
te producls whenever this can be dene. For instance, finished goods stock information is normally available by
product.

A simple ailocation rule is used in allocating costs which canmmot be direetly charged to product categories.

‘The segment information provided to the Executive Dircctots for the reportable segments for the year ended 31
December 2021 and 2020 are as follows:
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37. Segment Information of Group (Cont*d)

Recorciliation of information on reportable segment

Assel 2021 2020

GHe 000 GHg QO
LConsclidated property, plant and equipment 131,166 35,351
Unallecaled amounts 251,375 201.965
Tortal assetz for repurtable entities 382,54 337516

Geographical information

Revenue

In Ghana 955,303 453,191

Outside Ghana 3,490 3088
338,793 456,27

Nnn-current asset

In Ghana

Property, plant and equipmeqt 131,166 135,551

Right-of-use asset 10,255 11,468

Unallocated amounts 24.492 24.559
165913 171,569

38, Going Concern Consideration

The Group’s current liabilities exceeded its current assets by GHe 125 million {2020: GH¢ 133 million) 1n addition,
the Growp had a negalive net cash and cash equivalents of GHg¢ 26 million. A substantial part of the Group's
current liabilities is due to its related parties. Unilever PLC, the ultimate parent campany of Lnilever Ghana PLC
on behalf of itself, Umlever Overseas Holdings Limited and UAC [nternational Limited have confimmed in a letter
to the Company that they will not demand repayment of amounis due 1 them for one year from the date of signing
the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021,

The Company has prepared a forecast for the nexe twelve (12) months which shows that the Company will have
sutticient cashilows w Mnance future operations and retom o profitability in the very near future, Management
has further put in place measures to improve the Company's performance through inercased markeding and brand
visihiliny activities.

The Company alse has financial arrangements with some of its bankers to support its operational activitiss.
Accordingly, the financial starements are prepared based ot accounting policies spplicable to that of a going
comcern. This hasis assumes that cash flows arising trom the nornal course of business will be avaiiable to finance

foture operations of the Company and the realisation of assets and the settlement of liabilities would occur in the
normal course of businass.

39, Events After the Reporting Period
Events subsequent to the reporting date are reflected in the financial statements only to the extent that they relate

t¢ the year under consideration and the effect is malerial. The Company had no material subsequent events that
required adjustments to or disclosure in the financial stalements.
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ANALYSIS OF SHAREHOLDING

The Company had 11,570 ordinary sharcholders at 31 1december 2021 with equal voting tights distributed as

follows:

Holding 2021 Mo, of holders Haolders % No. of shares %% of holdings
- 1006 10,474 4.60 L878.071 5
[,001 - 5,000 B2 317 1,983,145 3
5,001 — 10,000 Q) .03 633,951 l
100011 and over 74 9118 56,984,833 a1

11,570 L0 62,500,000 100
Holding 2020 Mo, of holders Holders % Nn.of shares Y% of haldings
- 1,000 16,516 4.61 28873514 3
1,001 — 5,000 939 3.18 1,984,840 3
5,001 - 10,000 83 1.04 649,895 !
10,001 and over ¥4 91.16 56,977,951 91

11629 _100 62,500,000 100
Directors' Shareholding
MNone of the Directors held shares 1o the Group at 31 December 2021,
20 Largest Shareholders at 31 December 2021

Mo. of shares % of holdings

LUNILEVER OVERSEAS HOLDINGS LIMITED 31,562,545 .50
LAC INTERNATIONAL LIMITED 14,959,955 2408
KROHNE FUND LP 4,039,379 G4
SOCIAL SECURITY & NATIONAL INS TRUST 335,872 3.3
STAHL CHREISTOPH MICHAEL ROBERT 625,000 1.0
SCCGN/ENTERPRISE LIFE ASSQL.CO. 438,330 0.70
SCBN/SSB EATON VANCE TAX-MANAGED 245,000 £4.40
HFCN/EDC GHANA BALANCED FUNID LIMITED 112,695 0.18
SCGN/SCBM RE STANDARD CHARTERED BAN 07.236 0.16
SCGB/ASSE &'F AS CUS FOR BMO LLOYD 90,900 0.15
RAINBOW FUND L.P 72,600 0.2
CM FUND LIMITED 50,000 0.08
JAY KAY INDUSTRIES AND INVESTMENTS 30,000 0.07
5TD BANK NOMS [(TVL)PTY 50,000 047
SCEBN/UNMILEVER GHANA MANAGERS' 46,200 0.07
ME. AMOAKOH DIAMOND CAETRO 1L 44,701} 0.07
SCOGNELAC SHAREHOLDERS FUND 41,300 0.06
ESTATE OF REXFORD KWAST ADAL 19195 L
SCBNAUNIEEVER GHANA PROVIDENT FIMND 38,000 104
MR. ADDISON EUGENE SAMLUIEL 37.084 0.0
Reported totals 56,000,471 85.59



FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY OF THE COMPANY

Financial Position as at 31 Decem her

2017 2018
GHeg 000 GHe (i
Employment of funds
Property, plant and equipment 113,738 144,194
Right of use - -
[ntangible assets 7 -
Investment it subsidiariss (3] 10
Deferred tax asset - ’
Curtent assats 354,876 582,28
468,621 726,490
Employment of Funds
Total equity 120,597 295,141
Deferred income tax 8,644 8,842
Ermployee benefit obligation 4,364 4,113
Long term lease liability - -
Current liahilities 335,026 418,394
Total liabilities and tetal equity 468,631 726,490
Capital expenditure 21,005 60,914
Depreciaiion and amortisation 9,705 9533
Revenue 375,765 632,152
Profit/(loss) afier tax 48,149 190,825
Final dividend declared - (50,000)
Profitfloss) retained in the year 48.149 [40.825

2019
GHe 004

138,983
15422
1]
47,447

289.317

489.179

84.952
3,756
1,116

399,375

489,179

23,878

=3
L
=

333.29

=]

{160,316}

(160.316)

2020
GHE0N0

135,551
11,468
10
24,539
164,154

!

335,721

34,799
3,422
[66
207,334

435,721

(50,389)

(30,389)

2021
GH¢E000

131,166
10,255
I
24,48)
214.663

380,577

__196

7



